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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies
Durectors” report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Strategic report

Virgin Atlantic Airways (“VAA", “Airline” or “Group”) 15 a sigmificant UK international scheduled airhine, with a focus on
inter-continental routes VAA operates principally from London, with a presence at Heathrow and Gatwick, together with a
smaller operation in the UK regions VAA also operates a worldwide air cargo business, largely 10 conjunction with its
scheduled passenger services VAA provides a high quality passenger service to the key intemational cities served by
Heathrow, together with a leisure-focussed operation from Gatwick serving destinations in the US and Caribbean

The Airline now prepares 1ts financial statements under full IFRS to allow better comparability with 1ts peer group The
Arrhine has historically prepared its financial statements under UK GAAP Comparatives with 2014 are with the amounts
restated under IFRS (see note 31 for further details)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Airhne retumned a profit of £12 Om before tax and exceptional items The result 1s
significant given the considerable changes made to network configuration and operations during the year

Resuit highlights

=  Profit before tax and exceptional items 1mproves by £7 2m to £12 Om (statutory profit before tax of £89 Sm, 2074
restated loss before rax of £194 2m),

Atrline passenger unit revenue down 2 9%4,

Airline operating costs have fallen year on year by £196m, driven by fuel cost reduction of £191m,

Non-fuel unit costs remarned flat year on year, despite regulated cost increases,

The completion of a landmark senior secured note bond financing transaction raising £220m, and

Total cash (including restricted cash) increased by £300 7m 10 £584 4m

Arrhne passenger revenue

2015 was a year of sigmificant network change for the Airline, aligning the network to take full advantage of the transatlantic
Jomnt venture with Delta and focusing on its long haul operation The Arrline stopped flying to Tokyo, Mumbai, Cape Town
and Vancouver, and also closed its short haul service, Little Red, replacing services with additional transatlantic flying

Load factor was down 2 Spts to 76 8%, dnven by the redeployment of capacity from the rest of the world to transatlantic
services to reorient the network towards approximately 70% transatiantic flying This wall benefit the Aiwhine in the long-term
Yield performance was strong 1n the first part of the year, dnven by improvements to market fares and performance 1n the
business and premium economy cabtns This partially offset some of the decline in load factor In the latter half of the year the
fuel environment, while reducing fitel costs, led to downward pressure on fares These factors led to an overall reduction in
arrhne passenger revenue of £72 8m year on year, and a reduction 1n unit passenger revenue of 2 9%

In the transatlantic market, the Airline increased capacity by 14 8% This 1s aligned with Group's strategy to offer a better and
more frequent service to its customers, as well as opening up new US markets with Delta The Actrline successfully added
additional services into several existing Virgin Atlantic markets, New York, Los Angeles and San Francisco while also
starting services into the key Delta hubs of Atlanta and Detront, significantly enhancing Virgin Atlantic’s presence in the
transatlantic market We generated strong growth in passenger numbers, up 9 1%6 versus 2014 but these increases did not keep
pace with our capacity growth This led to a decline in our transatlantic load factor of 4 3pts We launched Boeing 787.9
aircrafi ito existing markets to Shanghai, Hong Kong, Johannesburg and Delhi These aircraft are delivering a superior
experience to our customers as well as reducing our capacity in each market and driving down our unit cests

Cargo revenue

Cargo revenue declined 13 0% prnimanly due to aggressive competitor activity and the low fuel cost environment, which put
pressure on price and meant our yields were down 8% year on year The change to our network was the nght decision for the
airline, but the loss of key routes, including Tokyo, Mumbar and Cape Town, resulted n declining volumes for our cargo
business We also introduced the Boeing 787-9 to Hong Kong and Shanghai, which reduced cargo capacity from the Far East
On the rest of the nctwork, market capacity increases outstripped demand growth Overall, cargo tonnage was down 4 3% year
on year
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Strategic report (conuned)
Fiymng Club

We have changed our frequent flyer programme (Flying Club) by making more seats available on more flights for our
members, to drive higher customer satisfaction scores using our reward proposition This change was reflected by a 17%
tncrease 1n the number of standard redemption seats booked by our members in 2015, and a £3 4m increase in Flying Club
revenue year on year to £72 3m for 2015

Operating costs

Aurline operating costs before excepticnal items have fallen year on year by £196m, driven by Falling fuel prices (including the
cost of hedging) and improved operating efficiency Airline unit operating cost of 4 69p improved by 7 3% year on year

Fuel cost

On a unit basss, fuel costs fell by 20 4%, mawnly drniven by fitel prices The introduction of new fuel-efficient asrcraft has
suppaorted our efforts to reduce our physical fuel cost, which 1s reflected in a 4 6% reduction in fuel burn year on year with flat
capacity growth However, this was largely offset by hedging losses of £198m, which will continue to unwind over the next 12
months

VAA operates a hedging policy that protects the business from exposure to volatlity 1n o1l prices and foreign currency rates
The policy allows VAA to hedge within bands, up to 24 months out with declining percentages Wiile Brent Crude pnces
have fallen by 34% (from $56 on the | January to $37 on the 31 December 2015), we did not benefit fully from the decline 1n
price because of our hedging policy We made realised hedging losses of £198m 1n 2015, but still benefited from a fall m our
effective hedged fuel price by 17% year on year, and m 2016 we wil! see this reduce further

Non-fuel cast

Non-fuel umt cost remained flai year on year Improved cost efficiency through our change programme, fit nmble, has
successfully covered the costs associated with our increased investment (n customer product and services Improved cost
efficiency has also offset the on-going negative impact of above inflation cost increases we saw endorsed by regulators in the
last review penod, for cenain regulated costs 1n our supply chain

Aarcraft ownership costs

We took delivery of seven new Boeing 787-0 awrcraft during 2015, taking our total Boeing 787-9 fleet to nine overall The
replacement of Airbus A340 aurcraft with the state-of-the-art Boemng 787-9 continued, reducimg the average age of our aircrafi
from ten years to eight. This makes our fleet one of the youngest and most fuel-efficrent in the skies Aircraft ownership costs
have reduced by £7 4m, driven by the cessation of our short haul operation (Little Red) and reduced interest costs duc to an
improved mix of leased and owned arcraft [n the long-term, as we move towards our target for ownership of approximately
50% of our aircraft fleet, we will increasingly benefit from lower ownership costs

Cash flow

We continue to improve our capital structure through stronger operating performance, a better mix of leased and owned
awrcraft, and through the successful completion of a landmark senior secured note bond transaction This was our maiden
capital markets transaction, and the first financing transaction of its kind in Europe to utihise UK airport slots to raise debt
finance

The £220m inflow from the senjor secured note financing transaction allowed us to purchase a Boeing 787-9 outnght, which 1s
our first unencumbered new aircraft to be owned by the airhne
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Strat egic report (conunued)

Key performance indicators

The directors have outlined below the key performance indicators that they rely on to manage the company The financial
indicators are stated at constant currency and on a 12 month basis to December for comparability, all amounts shown n the
tables below have been rounded to two decimal places

Safety

The safety and security of our customers is our primary concern______ __ __ _ o

| , 03 2014 2015 YoY

" Number of mcidents’ . T I ' —6: (106—%) )

Customers

Always for the customer, with flasr L - I

E - el 2 0140 205] " YoV

_Ontme performance (DI5) | BSS% | _ B55%| Bag% | 1let

Capacity

Dusciplined approach to managing our capactty _ _ e e e e —— -

Co ] R Sl g0, 20080 Yoy

Awendt L st %, 400 @6%)

I_Avallal:ile Seat Kilometres (ASK) (m) 50,330 43,710 | 48,385 | (0 7%}

Passengers

Passenger growth remains a key part of our Plan to Win . . o o

L o 2013 § 2014 | 2015 ! YoV |

; Revenue Passenger Kilometres (RPK) (m) ] 395491 386431 37,157 (38%)

- Passenger load factor_ L L 774% 79 3% | 768% | (25)pt

Airhine financials e ) )

) _ i 03] 200147 20151 YoY
Airline Passenger Revenue per ASK (p) I 408 422 } 410 (2 9%)
Airline Passenger Revenue per RPK (p) - 5 00 532 534 03%

CArhne Costper ASK(p) Z 5071  5Q6: 4691 (73%)
Fueluphft (UsG)(m) . ....A498 _ 48, 460 (4 6%) _
Cargo tonnage (kg)(m) Lok A 28 214 (A3%)

! Incidents subject to review by external regulatory bodies (e g AAIB, NTSB)
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Strategic report (contimed)
Market overview

2015 saw downward pricing pressure on transatlantic routes, due to the mcreased capacity in the market UK transatlantic
capacity grew 5 8% year on year, partly impacted by the changes that we made to our network n 2016, we expect to see seat
capacity growth stabilise now that we have rebalanced our network The price of fuel contnued to dechine, as reflected by the
68% fall in the price of Brent Crude per barrel (from a hugh point 1n 2014 of $116, $56 on the 1 January 2015 to $37 on the 31
December 2015) As hedges unwind, the benefit of a lower fuel price environment will be increasingly felt by airhnes and
other energy intensive industries Overall, 2015 has been a relatively good year for airlines, which resulted 1n a 7 5% average
airline Retumn on Invested Capital (ROIC), above the cost of capital for the first ume

Regulatory landscape

VAA continues to advocate the importance of promoting competition wn the travel industry, which ulumately benefits
consumers In parhicular, it remains critical that any new ninway capacity, as endorsed by the Government, should be aliocated
to enhance competition and correct legacy carriers’ inhented dominance, rather than exacerbate 1t

As we enter the imitial process of discussions over regulated charges for Heathrow and Gatwick, we support the Davies
Commussion’s recommendation that the economic benefits for the UK are greatest from expanding hub capacity at Heathrow
That said, a new runway must deliver a good outcome for local communittes and boost competition — which ultimately will
benefit customers We continue to work constructively with the Government, the CAA and other stakeholders on how new
capacity should be delivered and paid for, and will continue to encourage the Govemment to ensure decisions are made with
customers’ mterests front of mind, in terms of funding models, slot allocation and capacity

Aur Passenger Duty (APD) abolitson for band C and D and children’s travel was implemented in 2015 Despite these positive
steps, APD 1s sull the highest passenger tax in the world, double the next highest in Europe, which 15 1n Germany A passenger
travelltng with VAA will be taxed £73 in Economy or £146 in Premium Economy or Upper Class from Apnl 2016 for an
outbound journey Achieving an internationally competitive rate of APD remains a priority We will continue to engage with
regulators and policymakers in the UK and Brussels to progress amendments to EU Regulation EC261/2014, by encouraging
the development of a new passenger rights regulation on demied boarding and delay compensation Finally, we will continue to
support the need for an agreement on a global climate change framework for our industry which 15 both economically efficient
and environmentally effective

Qutlook

We will improve our financial performance as we leverage our strengthened network and grow into the capacity added last
year The continuing unwinding of higher priced hedging contracts and the further reduction n fuel prices 15 expected to lead
to greater financial benefits i 2016 Through our change programme, fit imble, we have idenufied and are implementing
more than 50 projects across eight work streams and we are well on the way to delivering £30m of benefit in 2016, with a run-
rate of approximately £60m by 2018

Virgin Atlantic and uts people are commutted to delighting our customers, as we have done for over 30 years Through
exploiting our network and partnership with Delta, and investing in our people, customers and technology, we have the
building blocks in place underpinning our strategy and to deliver sustainable profits
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Strategic report (contnued)
Risk review

Principal risks and uncertainties

The highly regulated and commercially competitive environment, together with operational complexity, leaves us exposed 1o a
number of significant nsks Our focus remains on mitigating these nisks at all levels of the business, aithough many remain
outstde of our control such as government regulanion, taxes, terrorism, adverse weather, pandemics and the economic
conditions in the markets in which we operate

The directors believe that the risks and uncertainties descnbed below are the ones which may have the most sigmficant impact
on our long-term performance

Business and operational

Brand reputation

The strong reputation and loyalty engendered by the Virgin Atlantic brands 1s a core part of the value of our business Any
damage to the brands caused by any single event, or senies of events, could materally impact customer loyalty and propensity
of customers (o travel and so adversely affect our business We regularly momtor customer satisfaction through monthly
customer surveys, alongside on-going research and development of our product and services, 1n order to mitigate this nsk We
allocate substantial resources to safety, operational integnty, on-board product and new aircraft 10 maintain our strong brand
position

Economic conditions

Our operalions are particularly sensitive to econormuc conditions in the markets in which we operate A global economuc
slowdown may adversely affect the demand for business and leisure travel, and cargo services, which could result 1n a material
adverse impact on our financial performance We produce a regular revenue forecast, which 15 reviewed by the Executive
Management Team and appropnate action 1s taken

Government intervention

Regulation of the aviation and tour operator industries 1s increasing and covers many of our activities, including safety,
secunty, route flying nights, airport slot access, environmental controls and government taxes and levies The ability both to
comply with and influence any changes in these regulations is critical to maimntaiming our operational and financial
performance

Safety, terrorism and security incidents

The threat of terronsm to the aviation and tour operating industries has an ympact on us As a result, we ensure that the safety
of customers, crew and staff 1s at the heart of our business Failure to respond to terronsm or security incidents may adversely
impact our operattons and financial performance We adopt a holistic approach to secunty, with the Corporate Security team
having overall responsibility for security matters linked to aviation, border secunity, cargo, facilities, IT, personnel and asset
protection To ensure the robustness of our secunty regime, we operate a self-inspection and test programme Joint audits and
mspections are also conducted with regulators Regulated comphance performance 15 monitored by way of a dedicated
scorecard which 15 reviewed at the Safety and Security Review Board In view of the on-going terronst targeting of civil
aviation and the potential impacts of global geopolitical events, much focus 1s placed on threat monitoring and assessment 1o
ensure that we have the most current and accurate data to make informed judgements about the secunity of our human and
physical assets

Failure of a critical IT system

We are dependent on IT systems for most of our principal business processes The failure of a key system through an internal
or external threat or event may cause significant disruption to operations or result in lost revenue System controls, disaster
recovery and business continuity arrangements exist to nutigate the nsk of a cntical system fallure Duning 2016, we will
mtroduce a new passenger service system (AIR4) which increases our critical IT systems risk, should the transition from old to
new system prove to be problematic We are mitigating this increased level of nsk through a comprehensive implementation
plan and by drawing on the extensive systems implementation expenence of Delta, who 1s providing us with AIR4
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Strategic report (connnued)

Risk review (continued)

Key supplier risk

We are dependent on suppliers for some principal business processes The failure of a key supplier to deliver contractual
obligations may cause significant disruption to our operations To mutigate this nisk, a close relationship 1s maintained with key
suppliers in order to ensure we are aware of any potential supply chain disrepuion

Financial risk management

The directors are responsible for setting financial nsk management policies and objectives, and for approving the parameters
within which the vanous aspects of financtal nsk management are operated Our Fuel and Foreign Currency Risk Management
policy, which has been approved by the directors, outlines our approach to corporate and asset financing, interest rate nisk, fuel
price nisk, foreign exchange risk and cash and hquidity management. The directors have delegated powers for treasury nisk
management to the Financial Risk Commiuttee This Commuttee ensures that the treasury policies and objectives approved by
the directors are fully implemented

Liquidity, financing and interest rate risk

Qur working caputal 1s financed by retained profit and sales 1n advance of carnage The major nsks to liquidity are driven by
business performance and cash-timing differences for our denivauve financial instruments The former 15 managed by taking
comrective actions in the form of amendments to fleet, network and the cost base in response to changing external factors The
latter 1s managed through our derivauve financial instruments policy All of our debt 15 asset related, reflecting the capital
intensive nature of the awrline industry and the attractiveness of arcraft as secunty to lenders and other financiers These
factors are also reflected in the medium-term profile of our loans and operating leases Our interest rate management policy
aims to provide a degree of certainty for future financing costs, which 1s achieved by funding the majonty of leans and
operating leases on a fixed interest rate basis Our loans and operating leases are principally denominated 1n US Dollars

Foreign currency risk

We have a sigmificant US Dollar exposure including aviation fuel, finance and operating leases In addition, we are exposed to
a number of other currencies We seek to reduce our foreign exchange exposure in vanous currencies through matching
receipts and payments 1n individual currencies, and holding foreign currency balances to meet our future trading obligations
Where there is a predicted exposure in foretgn currency holdings, we use a hmited range of hedging instruments through our
Fuel and Foreign Currency Risk Management policy

Some of the overseas countries 1n which we trade impose exchange controls to regulate the flow of money This creates the
risk that it may be impossible to bnng the income earned in one or more of these overseas countries into the UK, ether
because 1t 15 not permatted by the authortties 1n the overseas country or because 1t 1s difficult to obtain foreign currency there
We seek (o mitgate this nsk by closely monitoring the value of our funds denominated 1n overseas currencies whtch are
subject to exchange controls, to identify 1ssues at an early stage and to take remedial action to mummse the value of these
funds

Fuel price risk

Our Fuel and Foreign Currency Risk Management policy aims to provide protection against sudden and significant changes 1n
the price of jet fuel In order to provide protection we use a imited range of hedging instruments, principally vamlla put-and-
call opuons, collars and forwards, with approved counterparties and within approved linuts

Derivative financial instruments

We use derivative financial instruments selectively for foreign currency and aviation fuel price risk management purposes
Our paolicy 1s not to trade in denvatives but 1o use these mstruments to hedge anticipated future cash flows We are not
permitted 10 sell currency or jet fuel options, except as part of hedging structures authonsed in our Fuel and Foreign Currency
Risk Management policy All denvatives are used for the purpose of nsk management and accordingly they do not expose
Virgin Atlanuc to market risk as they are matched to dentified physicat exposures within Virgin Atlantic However, the imung
difference between derivative matunty date and current mark-to-market value can give rise to cash margin exposure, this nsk
is managed through choice of instrument, appropnate counterparty agreements and, where required, cash deposis with
counterparties Counterparty credit nsk 1s controlled through mark-to-market based credit fimits
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Strategic report (continued)

Risk review {continued)
Compliance and regulatory

Compliance with competition, anti-bribery and corruption law

We are exposed to the nisk of unethical behaviour by individual employees or groups of employees resulting in fines or losses
to VAA To muigate this nsk we have comprehensive traming schemes and comphance protocols in place to educate all
appropnate staff

Compliance with regulatory authorities

We are exposed to regulation across its network, including the Civil Aviatton Authority (CAA) The CAA authonises VAA 1o
continue 1ts activities following assessments of safety, ownership and control, and financial fitness criteria, the broad
framework of which 1s available via the CAA website {www caa co uh)

The strategic report was approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2046 and signed on its behalf by

il

Ian de Sousa
Company Secretary
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Directors’ report

Registered number: 01600117

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for Virgin Atlantic Awrways Limiuted and
substdiary companies for the year ended 31 December 2015

This 1s the first year to be prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union (*IFRS') The comparative amounts were previously prepared under applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP’) and have been restated to be prepared on a consistent basis under
IFRS The reconciliations to IFRS from the previously published UK GAAP financial statements are summarised in note 31

Directors and directors’ interests

The directors who held office during the year and to date of this report were as follows

Sir Richard Branson  (President)
Peter Nomis {Charrman)
Gordon McCalium

Ian Woods

Craig Kreeger

Sha) Weiss

Edward Bastian

Glen Hauenstein

Perry Cantarutti (resigned 15 August 2015)

Nathamel Pieper (appointed 15 August 2015)

Wayne Aaron (resigned 1 January 2016 as alternate for E H Bastian, G W Hauenstein and N J W Preper)
Results

The results of the Group are set out on page 12 and are commented on within the Strategic Report

Employees

In considering applications for employment from disabled people in the UK, the Group seeks to ensure that full and fair
consideration 15 given to the abilities and aptitudes of the applicant against the requirements of the job for which he or she has
applied Employees who become temporanly or permanently disabled are given individual consideration, and where possible
equal opportumities for waimng, career development and promotions are given

Within the bounds of commercial confidentiality, information 1s disseminated to all levels of staff about matters that affect the
progress of the Group and Company that are of interest and concern to them as employees The Group and Company also
encourages employees, where relevant, 1o meet on a regular basis to discuss matters affecting them

Environmental impacts
The Group 1s commutted to addressing and promoting sustainable solutions for its business and the wider airline industry

Change 15 1n the Air (“CIITA™) 1s Virgin Atlantic Airways' sustainability programme and focuses on the Group's
environmental and community investment activiies The Group reports fully on these acuvities each year through CIITA
reports which are available on s website

Sustainability 1s aligned with the Group’s brand values, and 1s 1n the process of being embedded into the way the Group does
business The Group 15 commutted to mcluding sustainabihity objectives into business plans, and regularly monitors progress
against sustainability targets to ensure that commuments are being dehivered
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Directors’ report (contined)

Dividends

The directors recommend that no ordinary mntenim (2074 £nil) or final {2014 £mi) dividend be pard 1n respect of the period
ended 31 December 2015

Political contributions

Neither the Company nor any of its substdianes made any political donations or incurred any pohitical expenditure during the
year (2014 £nul)

Share based payments: Long Term Incentive Scheme

During the year Virgin Atlantic staried a Long Term Incentive Scheme for Executsve Directors and other invited partuictpants
to incentivise and recognise execution of our strategy The details of this share appreciation nights (cash settled) scheme can be
found 10 note 9

Going concern

The directors have satisfied themselves that it 1s reaspnable for them to conclude it 1s appropnate to adopt the going concern
basis for preparing these financial statements The business activities, performance, strategy, rnsks and financial position of the
Group are set out elsewhere in these reports and financial statements The directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future

Auditors
Pursuant to Sectton 487 of the Companies Act 2006, KPMG LLP will be deemed to be reappointed
Disclasure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm thai, so far as they are each aware, there
1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware and each director has taken all sieps that he
ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s avditors are aware of thal information

The directors report was approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

Ian de Sousa
Conipany Secretary Registered Office
Company Secretanat
The OCffice, Manor Royal
Crawley, West Sussex
RH10 SNU
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Directors’ responsibilities statement in respect of the strategic report and directors’
report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year Under
that law they have elected to prepare both the Group and the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affars of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period In prepaning each
of the Group and Parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
e state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1 1s inappropniate to presume that the Group and the
Parent Company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient o show and explain the Parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that 1its financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other wrregulannes

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial informaton tncluded on the
company’s website Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation 1n other junsdictions

10

-
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Virgin Atlantic Airways Limuted for the year ended 31 December 2015 set out
on pages 12 10 62 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (EFRSs) as adopied by the EU and, as regards the Parent Company financial
statements, as applied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are
required 1o state to them 1n an auduor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audut
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the directors’ responsibihities statement set out on page 10, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fawr view Our responsibility 15 to
audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements 1n accordance with apphicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matertal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of

*  whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the Group's and Parent Company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

*  the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and

* the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the Strategic report and the Directors' report 1o
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal
musstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implicanons for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

* give atrue and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of
the Group's profit for the year then ended,

*  have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

*  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opwnion the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requires us to report

to you 1f, in our opinion.

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audut
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

* the Parent Company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audst

A

>

Jonathan Downer (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants | 7 e h 2016

KPMGLLP

15 Canada Square
London

El45GL

Unuted Kingdom
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies .
Directors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Jor the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Ordinary Exceptional Ordinary  Exceptional
activities items and activities items and
before fair value before fair value
exceptional movements excepional  movements
items (note B) Total items (note 8) Total
Note £m £m fm £m £m £m

Aurline traffic and cargo
operations 6 2,352.7 - 23527 24293 - 24293
Other revenue 6 15.7 - 15.7 170 - 170
Total revenue 23684 - 2,684 24463 - 24463
Aurcrafl costs (246 2) 67  (252.9) (240 4) - (2404)
Other depreciation and
amortisation (44.1) - {44.1) (23 B) - (238)
Physical fuel (525.5) - (525.5) (8547 - (8547
Fuel hedging (193.0) 198.0 - (19 19 -
Aurline traffic direct operating
costs (511.2) - (511.2) (518 1) - (5181)
Engineenng and mantenance
costs {138 9) - (138.9) (145 6) - (l456)
Employee remuneration 9 (3311) - (331.1) (3281 - (3281
Other income 154 (6.2) 9.2 60 69 129
Distnbution, marketing and
selling costs {109.2) - (109.2) (1o - (11on
Other operating and overhead
costs (267.5) - (261.5) (2337 119 (2218)
Qperating profit/Joss) 12.1 185.1 197.2 47 207 160
Profit on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 49 577 62.6 109 - 109
Profit on disposal of unlisted
tnvestment - N - - 309 309
Restructunng - (19.8) (19.8) - a7 amn

49 7.9 428 109 232 341
Finance income 1.8 - 1.8 17 - 17
Finance expense 6.7 - (6.7} an (25 5) {28 6)
Net finance costs 10 4.9) - (4.9) (14) (25 5) (26 9)
Fair value gains/{losses) on
denvanves - (145.6) (145.6) - (2174) (2174)
Profit/(loss) before tax 7 12.0 71.5 89.5 48 (1990) (154 2)
Tax (charge)credit 11 (6.1} 402
Profit/(loss) for the year 83.4 SIS4 0)

The profit/(loss) for the year for the Company 15 £76 7m (2014 £160 9m loss)

All amounts relate to continung operations The notes on pages 17 to 62 form part of these financial statements
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies
Drrectors’ report and consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Sor the year ended 31 December 2015

for the year ended 31 December 2015

IFRS Capital
transition  Share Share contribution Retained
reserve capital premium reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 (826) 45 50 250 41 (44 0)
Loss for the year - - - - (154 ) (154 0)
Transfer to retained earmings 826 - ~ (82 6) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 - 45 50 250 (232 5) (198 0)
Balance at 1 January 2015 - 45 50 250  (2325) (198 0)
Profit for the year - - - 834 834
Balance at 31 December 2015 - 4.5 5.0 25.0 (149.1) (114.6)
Share capital includes 4,497,607 (2014 4,497,607) ordinary shares of £1 each
Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2015
IFRS Capital
transition  Share Share contribution Retained
reserve capital premium reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 (82 6) 45 50 250 16 6 (315)
Loss for the year - - - - (160 9) (160 9)
Transfer to retained earnings 826 - (82 6) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 - 45 50 250 (226 9} (192 4)
Balance at | January 2014 - 45 50 250 (226 9) (192 4)
Profit for the year - - - 767 767
Balance at 31 December 2015 - 4.5 50 25.0 (150.3) (115.8)

Share capital includes 4,497,607 (2014 4,497,607) ordinary shares of £1 each

The notes on pages 17 to 62 form part of these financial statements
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies ,

Consolidated statement of financial position

s

Directors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

as at 31 December 2015
Registered number 01600117 2015 2014 2013
Note £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 104.1 114 6 107 2
Property, plant and equipment 13 5364 4102 3071
Deferred tax 14 149 453 11
Investments 15 0.0 04 74
Derivative financial instruments 16 4.9 67 113
Trade and other receivables 17 33.0 370 450
713.3 6142 4831
Current assets
Inventory 18 3838 431 435
Trade and other receivables 17 3115 3365 346 6
Denvative financial instruments 16 11.9 260 451
Cash and cash equivalents 19 521.7 2747 2901
Restricted cash 19 62.7 %0

TOTAL ASSETS

Current liabilities

Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Dertvative financial instruments
Deferred income

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Bormowings

Deferred income

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Denvative financial instruments

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Caputal contribution reserve
IFRS converston reserve
Retained earnings

946.6 689 3 7253
1,659.9 1,303 5 1,208 4

20 (34.4) (220) (17 8)
21 (d19.8) (4473) (4237
2 (55.5) (55 0) (53 6)
16 (183.6) (1738) (50 8)
23 (591.2)  (5922)  (5474)

(1,284.5) (1,2903) (1,093 3)
(337.9) (6010) (3680)

375.4 132 115 1
20 (363.5) (108) (14 6)
23 (52.8) arn (14 0)
21 5.1 (25) (18)
22 (58.7) (1074)  (1099)
16 9.9) (79 4) (18 8)

490.0) (2112) (159 1)
(114.6)  (1980) (44 0)

4.5 45 45

5.0 50 5.0
25.0 250 25.0

. - (826)
(149.1)  (2325) 41

(114.6) (198 0} (44 0)

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf by

Shai Weiss
Director

The notes on pages.}7 to 62 Worm part of these financial statements
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies

Company statement of financial position

Directors’ report and consohdated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

as at 31 December 2015
Registered number 01600117 2015 2014 2013
Note £m £m fm
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 104.1 1146 1072
Property, plant and equipment 13 541.7 4197 3226
Deferred tax 14 9.5 187 -
Investments 15 231.0 72 14 1
Denvauve financial instruments 16 4.9 67 113
Trade and other receivables 17 321 355 475
923.3 602 4 5027
Current assets
Inventory 18 38.9 429 436
Trade and other receivables 17 3281 3349 3440
Investments 15 0.6 - -
Denvative financial instruments 16 119 260 451
Cash and cash equivalents 19 508.9 264 1 2916
Restricted cash 19 56.6 191 -
945.0 6870 7243
TOTAL ASSETS 1,868.3 1,289 4 1,2270
Current habilities
Borrowings 20 (33.8) (22 0) (17 8)
Trade and other payables 21 (416.6) (4319) 4071)
Provisions 22 (55.5) (550) (53 6)
Denvative financial instruments 16 (183.6) (173 8) (508)
Deferred income 23 (591.2) {587 9) (543 1)
(1,280.7) (1,2706) (1,0724)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (335.7) (583 6} (348 1)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 587.6 18 8 154 6
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20 (576.9) (108) (14 6)
Deferred income 23 (52.8) (11 ) (14 0)
Deferred tax 14 - 271)
Trade and other payables 21 (5.1) 25) (18)
Provisions 22 (58.71 (107 4) (109 B}
Dernivative financial instruments 16 9.9) (79 4) (18 8)
(703.4) (211 2) (186 1)
NET ASSETS/LIABILITIES) (115.8) (192 4) (315
Equity
Share capital 4.5 435 45
Share premium 5.0 50 50
Capital contribution reserve 25.0 250 250
[FRS conversion reserve - - (826)
Retained eammings (150.3) (226 9) 16 6
(115.8) (192 4) (31 5)

These financial stateme
behalf by

Shai Weiss
Director
The notes on‘pages 17 to 62 form part of

financial statements
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies |
Directors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Note £fm £m
Net cash from operating activities 32 259.8 120 1
Purchase of property, plant and equpment (381.0) (244 1)
Purchase of intangible assets (0.6) {04)
Sale of investments 04 37.8
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 415.1 883
Realised (losses) on derivative financial instruments (189.4) (102)
Interest received 1.8 17
Net cash (used in) investing activities (153.7) (126 9)
Payment of long term borrowings (18.8) -
Proceeds from issue of new bonds 236.2 04
Payment of finance leases (22.8) -
Net cash from financing activities 194.6 04
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3007 (6 4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year (incl restricied cash) 19 283.7 2901
Effcct of forergn exchange rate changes -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (incl, restricted cash) 19 584.4 2837

The notes on pages 17 to 62 form part of these financial statements
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes

1 Generzal information

Virgin Atlantuc Awrways Limuted (the ‘Company’} and its subsiharies (‘VAA' or the ‘Group’ as
apphicable) 15 a long- haul scheduled passenger awlne, operating primanly from the United Kingdom
Further details on the nature of the Group's operations and 1ts pnncipal activiues can be found within the
Strategic Report on pages 1 to 7

The Company s a private limited company incorporated and domuciled 1n the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 The address of its registered office 1s given on page 9

2 Statement of compliance with IFRS

The Group and Company has prepared 1ts consolhidated financial statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporung Standards (‘IFRS’) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union, taking into
account IFRS Interpretations Commuttee {IFRSIC) interpretations and those pants of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies reporting under [FRS

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and Company are set out 1n note 4

3 Statement of comphance for first time adopters of IFRSs

Virgin Atlantic Awways Limuted has histonically prepared 1ts audited annual financial statements under,
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce ("UK GAAP"), this 1s the first year that the Group has
prepared financial statements that comply with IFRS As such, the accounung policies and basis of
preparation differ from those set out in the report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 The disclosures required by IFRS 1, First-ime Adoption of Internauocnal Financial Reporting
Standards for the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS are included 1n the notes to the financial statements

4 Accounting polices
Basis of preparation

The directors have, at the ime of approving the financial statements, having regard for the pnnciple rnisks
and uncertainties, as set out 1n the Strategic and Darectors’ report, including the net hability position, which
could impact the business, consider that the preparation of the financial statements on a going concern
basis remains appropriate The Group has adequate resources (o be able to meet its current obligations for
the foreseeable future

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not published a
separate income statement and related notes for the Company The result for the year attnibuiable to the
Company ts disclosed 1a the company statement of changes in equity

The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis, except for certan financial
instruments that are recorded at fair value These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling as
that 1s the currency of the pnimary economic environment in which the Group operates All values are
rounded to the nearest mithon pounds (£ million), except where indicated otherwise

The principal accounting policies adopted, which have been applied consistently 1n the current and the
restated prior financial year, are outhred below

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited (“the Company”) and 1ts subsidiaries
{(together “the Group™) The Group's consolidated financial siztements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (“its subsidianes”) made up to 31 December each
year Cantrol 15 achieved where the Company has the power (directly or indirectly) to govern the financial
and operating policies of an 1nvestee entity so as to obtain benefits from its acuvities

The financial statements of subsidianes are deconsolidated from the date that conirol ceases All nira-
group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidanon All subsidiartes of the
Group have been accounted for using the principles of acquisition accounting
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies ,
Direclors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes (contnued)

4

Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue and revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business during the accounting peried
Revenue 15 recogmsed net of discounts, air passenger duty, VAT and other sales-related taxes and
COMPprISES

Passenger revenue

Passenger licket sales, net of passenger taxes and discounts, are recorded within deferred income,
until recognised as revenue when transportation occurs This also includes revenue denived from
flights operated by the Group’s codeshare partners Unused tickets are recogmised as revenue
when the nght to travel has expired, which 1s determined by the terms and conditons of the
associated ticket

Ancillary revenue, compnsing principally of baggage carmage, advanced seat assignment,
commussions, change fees and credit and debit card fees due to the Group, are recogmised as
revenue on the date the night to receive consideration occurs, typically the date of transportation
In respect of credit and debat card fees, revenue 15 recogmsed when each flight 1s booked and pad
for

Frequent flyer programme revenue

For miles earned by members of the Group’s Frequent Flyer Programme ‘Flying Club’, an
element of revenue representing the farr value of a flight which members may take 1n future at no
cost 1s deferred and recogmsed when the related flight 1s redeemed The amount of deferral 1s
based on the far value of 2 mile

The Group’s frequent flyer programme ‘Flying Club’ allows customers te earn mileage credits by
flying on Virgin Atlanuc (and selected partner airlines) as well as through participating companies
such as credit card 1ssuers Flying Club members can redeem mules for various rewards, pnmanly,
for the redemption on Virgin Atlantic flights or selected pariner airlines and other partners such as
hotels and car rental companies

In accordance with IFRIC 13 ‘Customer loyalty programmes’, the fair value attnbuted to the
awarded Flying Club mile 15 deferred as a hability and recogmsed as revenue on redemption of the
miles and proviston of service to the participants to whom the mile 1s 1ssued.

Revenue on redemption 1s measured based on Management’s estimate of the fair value of the
account the proportton of miles that are expected to expire (breakage) based on the results of
actuanal valuation

Marketing revenue received by participating companies with the issuance of miles 1s recognised
when the service 1s performed (typically on the 1ssuance of the mile)

Compensation payments

Income resulting from claims for compensation payments / iquidated damages is recognised as income 1n
the income statement when all performance obligattons are met, including when a contractual entitlement
exists, 1t can be rehably measured and ut 1s probable that economic benefits will accrue to the Group
Where claims related to the acquisition of an asset (such as arcraft) do not relate to compensation for loss
of income or towards incremental operating costs, the amounts are recorded as a reduction n the cost of the
retated asset
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Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes {continued)

4 Accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

The consolidated accounts of the Group are presented 1n pound sterling, which 1s the Company's functional
currency and the Group's presentation currency Certain subsidianies have operations that are primanly
mnfluenced by a currency other than sterling.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and habihues associated with
the Group's foreign subsidiary undertakings are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date Income and expense items associated with the Group’s foreign subsidiary undertakings are transtated
at the average exchange rate for the period Exchange differences arising, 1if any, are recognised 1n other
comprehensive income and accumulated 1n shareholders’ equity On dispesal of a foreign operation, all of
the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that subsidiary, attributable to the Group are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement

Transactions ansing, other than 1n the functional cumrency, are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities denomunated in foreign currencies are re-
translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined Non-monetary items
that are measured 1n terms of historical cost 1n a foreign currency are not re-iranslated

All other profits or losses ansing on translation are dealt with through the income statement Any gains or
losses anising on the re-translation of foreign currency cash balances held in the short-term 1o meet future
trading cbligations are reported 10 the income statement

Employee benefits

Pension

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group 1n independently admimistered funds The amount charged to
the income statement represents the contnbutions payable to the scheme by the Group n respect
of the accounting perod

Termunation benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the normal
reurement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits The Group recognises termination benefits when 1t 15 demonstrably commutted to either
terminaung the employment of current employees according o a detailed formal plan without
realisuc possibility of withdrawal, or providing terminatton benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy Other employee benefits are recognised when there 1s deemed to
be a present obligation

Share based payments: Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Group accrues for any element of foreseeable future awards for employees and directors
under LTIPs which have been agreed by the Board of Directors, and which are deemed to have
been earned in the current penod

The Group operates a cash-settled share-based payments scheme, a liability 1s recogmised for the
goods or services acquired, measured imtially at the fair value of the liabiity At each balance
sheet date unul the habiluy 15 settled and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the lability 1s
re-measured, with any changes in fair value recognised 1n profit or loss for the year
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’

Notes (continued)
4 Accounting policies (conttnued)
Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnises current and deferred tax

Current tax

The Group's liability for current 1ax 15 provided at amounts expected to be pad (or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported in the income statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible 1n other years and it excludes items that are never taxable or deductble

Deferred tax

Deferred tax ts provided 1n full on all temporary differences relaung to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilines, where it 15 probable that the recovery or settlement wall result in an
obligation to pay more, or a right (o pay less, 1ax in the future, with the following exceptions

s In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments 1n subsidiaries or
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

e Deferred income tax assets are recogmised only to the extent that it 1s probable (more likely
than not) that taxable profit will be available aganst which the deducuble temporary
differences, carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be utihised

Deferred 1income tax assets and hiabitlities are measured on ar undiscounted basis at the tax rates
that are expected to apply when the related asset 1s realised or hability 1s settled, based on tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and hiabihiies are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to set off
current lax assets against current tax Liabilities and 1t 15 the tention to settle these on a net basis

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are held at cost and amortised on a straighi-line basis over their economic hfe, or where
deemed to have an indefinite econormc hfe and are not amortised, but tested annually for impairment The
carrying value of intangibles 15 reviewed for impairment 1f and when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Landing rights

Landing nights acquired from other awrhines are capitalised at fair value on acquisition
Subsequently they are accounted for at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Capitalised
landing nghts based outside the EU are amortised on a straight-ine basis over a period not
exceeding 20 years Capitalised landing nights based within the EU are not amortised, as i
regulations provide that these landing nghts are perpetual i

The Group had previously amortised EU purchased landing slots over their useful economic life

which was esimated at 20 years from the date at which they came into service The directors

reassessed this economic hife 1n view of the Open Skies agreements which came 1nto effect in '
2008 and which increased and developed a more transparent market for slots and also in view of

the legal nghts for slots which provide that the holder has ‘grandfather nghts’ for landing slots

which continue for an indefinite period. As a result of those developments purchased landing slots

are constdered to have an indefimte economic life and are not amortised Instead, they are subject

to an annual impairment review and a provision 1s recogmsed for any idenufied impairment
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Notes {continued)

4 Accounting policies (connnued)

Intangible assets (conrtnued)

Software

The cost of purchase or development of compuier software that is separable from an item of
related hardware 15 capitalised separately and amortised over a period not exceeding four years on
a straight-line basis Computer software 1s camed at cost less accumulated amortisation

Development expenditure on activities s capitalised 1f the product or process 1s technically and
commercially feasible and the Group tntends to, and has the technical ability and sufficient
resources to, complete development and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure
atnbutable to the intangible asset during its development The expenditure capitahised includes
the cost of matenals and direct labour Other development expenditure 1s recognised in the income
slatement as an expense as iacurred

Expenditure, relaung to the setting up of new routes and introducing new aircraft to the fleet, 1s charged to
the income statement as incurred

Property plant and equipment (“PPE”)

Property, plant and equipment s held at cost The Group has a policy of not revaluing property, plant and
equipment Depreciation 1s calculated o write off the cast less estimated residual value on a straight-line
basis, over the economic hife of the asset or the penod of the underlying finance lease if shorter Residual
values and useful economic hves of assels are reviewed annually against prevailling market values for
equivalently aged assets and depreciation rates are adjusted accordingly on a prospective basis

The carrying value 1s reviewed for impairment when events or changes n ciucumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable and the cumulative impairment losses are shown as a reduction tn
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plamt, equipment and intangible assets after deducting any costs
associated with selling, disposing of or retiring the relevant asset 1s recognised 1n the income statement

Fleet

All arcraft are stated at the fair value of the consideration given after taking account of
manufacturers’ credits or discounts An element of the cost of a new aircraft 1s attributed on
acquisitton to prepaid maintenance of sts engines, landing gear and airframe and 1s depreciated
over a penod from one 10 ten years from the date of purchase to the date of the next scheduled
maintenance event for the component

Aarcraft and engine maintenance ¢osts in respect of major overhauls of owned arcraft which are
typically carmed out at intervals greater than one year are capitalised and depreciated by reference
to their units of economic consumption, typically hours or sectors flown Part of the imtial cost of
new or used awrcraft 15 treated as such mamtenance expenditure based upon 1ts maintenance status
on acquisition and the current cost of the mamtenance evenls

The balance of aircraft and engine cost 1s depreciated on a straight-line basts over pertods of up to
twenty years, 50 as to reduce the cost to estimated residual value at the end of that period The
effecuve depreciation rate per annum in respect of new wide-bodied aircraft 1s approximately 5%

For 1installed engines matntained under ‘pay-as-you-go’ contracts, the depreciation hives and
residual values are the same as the aircraft to which the engines relate
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Notes (continued)

4 Accounting policies (continued)

Property plant and equipment (*PPE”) (continued)

Fleet (continued)

Aarcraft and engine spares acquired on the introduction or expansion of the fleet as well as rotable
spares purchased separately are carmied as PPE and are generally depreciated in line with the fleet
to which they relate The Group depreciates such spares on a straight-line basis so as to reduce the
cost or valuation to estimated residual value at the end of thew useful lives The effecnve
depreciation rate per annum in respect of rotable spares 1s 7 25% or 12 5% dependent on type
Cabin interior modifications, including those required for brand changes and relaunches, are
depreciated over the lower of six years and the remaining life of the aircraft

Subsequent costs, such as long-term scheduled mainienance and major overhaul of aircraft, are
capitalised and amortsed over the length of penied benefiung from these costs All other
replacement spares and other costs relating to maintenance of fleet assets (including maintenance
provided under 'pay-as-you-go' contracts) are charged to the income statement on consumplion or
as incurred respectively

Financing costs incurred on borrowings that specifically fund progress payments on assets under
construction, principally aircraft, are capitalised as incurred, up to the date of the aircraft entering
service and 1s then included as part of the asset

Advance payments and option payments made in respect of awcraft and engine purchase
commitments and options to acquire aircraft where the balance 1s expected to be funded by lease
financing or outnght purchase are recorded al cost in current or non-current aircraft deposits On
acquisition of the related aircraft, these payments are included as part of the cost of awrcraft and
are depreciated from that date

Expenditure incurred on modifications to awcraft under operating leases, 1s depreciated on a
straight-line basis to a ml residual value over a period not exceeding the remaining lease penod

Land/buildings, assets in the course of construction, fixtures and fittings
The bukdings in freehold land and buildings are being depreciated over a penod of 50 years, on a
straight-line basis No depreciation 1s provided 1n respect of assets in the course of construction or

freehold land

Plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings are depreciated at the following rales

Fixtures and fittings 20% - 25% on cost

Plant and equipment 25% - 33% on cost

Computer equipment and software 10% - 33% on cost

Motor vehtcles 25% on cost

Leasehold improvements lower of useful economic Iife or pencd of lease

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when 1t 1s highly probable to be disposed of within 12
months and the current carrying value 1s to be recovered principally through sale as opposed to continuing
use Held for sale assets are carnied at the lower of carrying value and fatr value less cosis to sell Assets
are not depreciated or amortised once ¢lassified as held for sale

Impairment of non-current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-current assets to determine
whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estirated in order 10 determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any) Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less cosls to sell and value 1n use
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Notes {contnued)

4

Accounting policies (conttnued)

Aircraft deposits

Aurcraft deposits are capitahsed and represent deposits made with aircraft manufacturers for future delivery
of aircraft or deposits made with aircraft financiers or operaning lessors to provide secunity for future
maintenance work or lease payments

Leases

Operating leases

Rental charges on operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease In the event that lease incentives are received to enter mnto operaung
leases, such incentives are recogmsed as a liability The aggregate benefit of incentives 1s
recogmsed as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basts over the ife of the respective
asset Some operating leases require the Group to make contingent rental payments based on
vaniable interest rates, which are expensed as incurred

Sale and leaseback

The Group enters into sale and leaseback transactions whereby 1t sells awrcraft, or nghts to acquire
aircraft, to a thied party The Group subsequently leases the arcraft back, by way of operaung
lease Any profit or loss on the disposal, where the price that the aircraft 1s sold for 15 not
considered to be farr value, 15 deferred and amortised over the lease term of the asset Any gains or
losses associated with the disposal are recognised in the income statement

Finance lease

Where the Group enters into a lease which entaits taking substanually all the risk and rewards of
ownership of an asset, the lease 1s treated as a finance lease The asset s recorded within Non-
current assets as Asrcraft, and 1s depreciated over the esumated useful life 10 the Group The asset
1s recorded at the lower of its fawrr value, and the present value of the minimum lease payments at
the inception of the finance lease Future instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are
included as obligations under finance leases Rental payments are apportioned between the finance
element, which 1s charged to the income statement, and the capital element, which reduces the
outstanding obligation for future instalments The finance charge 15 allocated to each period
during the lease term so as 1o produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the hability

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Provision 15 made for obsolete, slow-
movtng or defective items where appropniate Aircraft consumables, includes aircraft parts which are non-
reparable and non-renewable
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Accounting policies (conninued)

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligatien as a result of a past
event, 1t 15 probable that the Group will be required to settle that cbligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligauon The amount recognised as a provision 1s the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obhgation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the nsks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation

Leased aircraft maintenance provisions

The Group ncurs habilities for maintenance costs 1n respect of aircraft leased under operating
leases during the term of the lease These anise from legal and constructive contractual obligattons
relating to the condition of the aircraft when 1t 15 returned to the lessor

To discharge these obhigations, the Group will either need to compensate the lessor for the
element of the hfe of the component or maintenance wnterval used, or carryout the maintenance
check before return of the aircraft to the lessor

The provisions recorded and charged to the income staternent are dependent on the life of the
component or maintenance interval used and the individual terms of the lease

* No charge 1s recorded during the initial period of lease agreements where no compensation or
maintenance 1s required prior to hand-back

e After a component or maintenance interval has passed the trigger point such that the Group 1s
contractually obliged to carry out the specified work (in order to meet the return conditions), a
full provision for the cost of work 15 recorded To the extent that this provision represents an
increase to the half-life compensation provision already recorded a maintenance asset 15
recorded within property, plant and equipment The asset 1s depreciated over the expected
peniod to the next half-hfe compensation pont, or the end of the lease, whichever 1s sooner

Where maintenance 1s provided under *power by the hour’ contracts and maintenance 1s pad to
maintenance providers to cover the cost of the work, these payments are expensed as incurred

Maintenance deposits (supplemental rents) which are refundable are recorded as other receivables
Esumates are required to establish the likely unhsation of the aircraft, the expected cost of a
maintenance check at the tume 1t 1s expected to occur, the condition of an aircraft and the lifespan
of life-limited parts Where such maintenance deposits are non-refundable and the lkely
utilisation of the arrcrafl 15 not expected to trigger a maintenance event, the balance 1s deemed
irrecoverable and expensed as incurred with any associated maintenance provisions reduced to
reflect the fact that the Group has already paid for the related maintenance work

The bases of all estimates are reviewed once each year and also when information becomes
available that 1s capable of causing a matenal change to an esumate, such as renegotiation of end
of lease return conditions, increased or decreased utilisation, or unanticipated changes 1n the cost
of heavy maintenance services For owned atrcraft and engines, major overhaul expenditure 1s
capitalised and depreciated by reference to the units of economic consumption, typically hours or
sectors flown

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Group has develaped a detarled formal plan for
the restructuring and has raised valid expectations in those affected that 1t will carry out the
restructuring by starting 1o implement the plan or announcing 1ts main features to those affected
by 1t The measurement of a restructurning provision includes only the direct expendatures ansing
from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarly entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the enuty
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Accounting policies (continied)

Provisions (contnued)

Property provisions
Leasehold dilapidations and onerous lease provisions are discounted with the unwinding of the
discount being taken to the income statement

Passenger delay compensation

A provision 1s made for passenger compensation claims when the group has an obligation to
recompense customers under regulations Provisions are measured based on known eligible flights
delays and historic claim rates and are expected to unwind across the claim window, which 1s
deemed to be 6 years

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabulities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the relevant instrument In accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement’, financial instruments are recorded imitially at fair value Subsequent measurement of those
mstruments at the balance sheet date reflects the designanon of the financial instrument The Group
determunes the classification at 1mtial recogmtion and re-evaluates this designation at each period-end
excepl for those financtal instruments measured at fair value through the income statement

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses varous derivative financial nstruments to manage its exposure to foreign
exchange, jet fuel price and interest rate nisks Denvative financial instruments are imtally
recognised and subsequently re-measured at farr value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") The
treatment of gains and losses ansing from the revaluation of such instruments 1s accounted for
through the income statement

Hedge accounting 15 not applied to these instruments The Group does not use denvative financial
mstruments for trading purposes

Non-derivative financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets are deemed to be assets which have no fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted 1n an active market and would therefore be classified as ‘loans and
recewvables” Such non-denivative financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment and include trade and other receivables

Interest income 1s recognised by applying the effecuve interest rate, except for short-term
recervables when the recognition of interest would be immatenial

Investments 1n equity instruments are carried at cost where fair value cannot be rehiably measured
due to significant vanability 1n the range of reasonable fair value estimates

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, for the purposes of the cash flow statement, compnises cash held 1n bank accounts
and money market deposits repayable on demand with no access restrictions, less
overdrafts payable on demand Cash equivalents are current asset investments which are
readily convertible tnto known amounts of cash at, or close to, their carrying values or
traded 1n an acuve market, without curtailing or disrupting the business

Restricted cash

Restnicted cash represents funds held by the Greup in bank accounts which cannot be
withdrawn unnl certain conditions have been fulfilled The aggregate restncted funds
balarce 1s disclosed by way of a note to these financia! statements and 1s classified as a
current or non-current asset based on the esumated remaining length of the restriction
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Accounting policies (contnued)

Financial instruments (contined)

Impairment of non-derivative financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a non-denivative financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impaired A financial asset 15 considered impaired If objecuive evidence
wndicates that one or more events that have occurred since the tmitial recogmtion of the asset have
had a negauve impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset An impairment loss in
respect of a financial asset carned at amortised cost 1s calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
onginal effective interest rate

De-recognition of non-derivative financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or 1l transfers the financial asset and substantially all the rnisks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Non-denvative financial habilities are intially recorded at fair value less directly atributable
transaction costs, and subsequently at amortised cost, and include trade and other payables,
borrowings and provisions Interest expense on borrowings 1s recogmsed using the effective
wterest method

Borrowings are classified as current habilities unless there is an uncondiitonal nght 1o defer
settlement of the hability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Certain leases contain interest rate swaps that are closely related to the underlying financing and,
as such, are not accounted for as an embedded denvative

De-recognition of non-derivative financial liabilities
The Group derecogmses financial liabhities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire

Where an exisuing financial hability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exisung liabiliy are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification 1s treated as a de-recognition of the original hability and the recogmtion of a new
liability, such that the difference 1n the respective carrying amounts are recognised 1n the income
statement

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attnibutable to the acquisttion, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessanly take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the costs of those assets, untd such tume as the assets are substantally ready for their intended
use or sale Investment income earned on the temporary nvestment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets 1s deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement 1n the penod in which they are incurred
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Accounting policies (conttnued)

Impact of new International Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations

The following standards and interpretations 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board have
been implemented for the year ended 31 December 2015, however the Group has aot early applied the

following new or amended standards in prepanng these consolidated financial statements

measurement of financial instruments, 2
new expected credit loss model for

adoption permitted

New or Summary of requirements Adoption and EU Possible impact on
amended endorsement status consolidated financial
standards statements

IFRS 9 | IFRS 9 pubhished in July 2014, replaces | IFRS9 15 effective for | The Group 1s assessing the

Financial the existing pmidance 15 1AS39 Fianceal | annual reporing | potenbal mpact on 1ts

Instruments | mstrumenis Recogniiion and | periods beginming on | consohdated financial
Measurement IFRS9 includes revised | or after 1| January { statements resulung from
gwdance on  the classificabon and | 2018, with  early | the application of [IFRS 9

accounting model, which distinguishes
between on-balance sheet finance leases
and off-balance sheet operating leases
and, instead, introduces a single, on-
balance sheet accounting mode! that 1s

simtlar to cumrent  finance  lease
accounting

Sale-and-leaseback 15 effecuvely
elimunated as an off-balance sheet

financing structure

or after | January
2019, with early
adoption  permutted
providing [FRS15 1s
also adopted

The new standard 1s
not yet endorsed by
the EU

calculaung mpairment of financial | The new standard 15
assets, and new hedge accounting | not yet endorsed by
requirements the EU
IFRS 15 | IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive | IFRS 15 1s effectve | The Group 15 assessing the
Revenue framework for determuning whether, how { for annual reporting { poteniial mmpact on s
from much and when revenue 15 recognised It | penods beginning on | consolidated financial
contracis replaces existitng revenue recognition | or after 1 January | statements resuling from
with guidance, including 1AS18 Revenue, | 2018, wath  early | the application of IFRS 15
IAS11 Construcuon Contracts and | adoption permtted
CUSIOMETS | |FRC13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
The new standard 15
not yet endorsed by
the EU
IFRS 16 | IFRS 16 changes fundamentally the | IFRS 16 1s effective | The Group 1s assessing the
Leases accounting for leases by lessees It | for annual reporting | potential 1mpact on its
eliminates the current [AS 17 dual | penods beginning on | consohidated financial

statements resulung from
the application of IFRS 16

The following new or amended standards are not expected to have a sigmficant impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements

® & & & 2

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts,
Accounnting for Acquisittons of Interests in Joint Operations (amendments to IFRS11)
Clarificanon of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisauon (IAS16 and IAS38)
Equity Method 1n Separate Financtal Statemenis (amendmeats 1o IAS27)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or JV (amendmenis to IFRS10

and [AS28)
*  Annual improvements to [FRSs 2012-14 cycle — various standards

Investment Entities Applying the Consohidation Exception (amendments to IFRSI0, [FRS12 and

IAS28)

Dusclosure imitiative (amendments to [AS1)
Recogmuon of Deferred Tax Assets for Unreahsed Losses ~ Amendments to IAS]12
Disclosure Imuative — Amendments to IAS7
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5

Significant judgements, estimates and critical accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the applicatnon of policies and reported amounts of assets and habthues, mncome
and expenses These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors believed 10 be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results could differ from these
estimates and the underlying assumpuions are reviewed on an ongong basis

Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed in the period in which the estimate 15 revised if the
revision affects only that penod, or 1n the period of the revision and future periods 1f the revision affects
both current and future periods

The following accounting policies are considered critical accounting policies as they require a significant
amount of management judgement and the results are matenal to the Group's financial statements

Leased aircraft maintenance provisions

For aircraft held under operating leases, the Group has a commitment to return the aircraft in a
specific maintenance condition at the end of the lease termn Estmating the provision for
maintenance costs requires judgement as to the cost and timing of future maintenance events This
estimate 1s based on planned usage of the aircraft, contractual obligations under lease agreements,
industry experience, manufacturers’ guidance and regulattons Any change in these assumptions
could potennally result in a sigmficant change to the maintenance previsions and costs 1n future
periods

Revenue recognition - frequent flyer programme

For the Group's frequently flyer loyalty programme, the fair value attnbuted to awarded miles 1s
deferred as a hability and 1s recognised as revenue on redemption of the mtles and provision of
service to the participants to whom the miles are 1ssued

The fair value of the awarded mule 1s estumated by reference to the fair value of the award for
which the mules could be redeemed and 15 reduced to take into account the proportion of awarded
miles that are not expected to be redeemed by customers The Group exercises its judgement 1n
deterrining the assumptions to be adopted n respect of the number of miles not expected to be
redeemed through the use of staustical modelling and historical trends and in determining the mix
and fair value of the award nules

Residual value and useful economic lives of assets

The Group exercises judgement to determine useful hves and residual values of property, plant
and equipment The assets are depreciated to their residual values over their estimated useful hves

Lease classification

A lease 15 classified as a linance lease when substantally all the nsk and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the Group In deterrmiming the approprnate classification, the substance of the
transaction rather than the form 1s considered Factors considered include but are not limited to the
following whether the Jease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease
term, the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at the price that is sufficiently lower than the
fair value on exercise date, the lease term 1s for the major pan of the economic hife of the asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of the far
value of the leased asset
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Revenue analysis

2015

r Group H

2015 2014
Revenue £m £m
Airline traffic and cargo operattons 2,352.7 242913
Other 15.7 170

23684 24463

The geographical analysis of revenue by source 1s denived by allocating revenue to the area in which the
sale 1s made, whulst the geographical analysis of revenue by destination 1s denived by allocating revenue
from inbound and outbound services between the United Kingdom and overseas points to the
geographical area 1n which the relevant overseas point lies

L Group

2015 2014

£m £m
Revenue by source:
United Kingdom 1,417.0 1,418 2
North America and the Caribbean 584.0 488 8
Far East 93.2 1603
Africa 96.6 115§
Other 177.6 263.9

2,3684 2,4463

Revenue by destination:

North America 1,558.5 1,364 8
Canbbean 243.0 2513
Far East 178.6 3060
Africa 191.1 2338
Other 197.2 2904

2,3684 24463

A geographical analysis of the Group operatng profit 1s not disclosed as # 15 nerther practical nor
meaningful to aliocate the Group's operating expenditure on a geographical basis Since the arcraft fleet
{whtch 15 the major revenue-earmng assel of the Group) 1s employed flextbly across a worldwide route
network, there 15 no suntable basis of allocaung such assets and related Labilities to geographical
segments and accordingly no geographical analysis of assets or net habilites 1s disclosed
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7 Profit/(loss) before tax

Profit/(loss) for the year has been arnived at after {charging)/credinng the following, including items
presented as exceptional

[ Group |
2015 2014
£m £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 13) (65.6) (472)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) (16.2) o0
Rentals under
operating leases
Aurcraft and related equipment {2120) (204 1)
Plant and machinery (18.4) (113)
Land and buildings (22.1) (222
Contribution to pension schemes (264) (260)

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and 1ts associates for services other than the statutory audit of the
parent company and subsidiaries are not disclosed in Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited’s accounts since
the consohidated accounts of Virgin Atlantic Airways Limuted's parent, Virgin Atlantic Limited, are
required to disclose non-audit fees on a consolidated basis Fees payable to the Company’s audttor for
the audit of the Company’s annual accounts are £0 2m (20/4 £02m) Fees payable to the Company’s
auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation are £n1l (20/4 £nil)

8 Exceptional items

Exceptional items included in profit/(loss} before tax include the fellowing

| Group _]

2015 2014
£m £m

Accelerated depreciation on aircraft equipment (1) (6.6)
Fuel hedging reclassified o fair value gains/(fosses) on derivatives (1) 198.0 19
Forex derivanve gans/(losses) reclassified to fair value gains/(losses) on
derivatuves (1) (6.2) 119
Setilement of legal claim against suppher (1) 69
Profit on disposal of arrcraft equipment (1v) 5737
Profit on disposal of unlisted investment (v) 309
Restructuring
costs (vi) (19.8) @
Loss on settlement of
Interest raie swap (vi1) (25 5)
Fair value gains/(losses) on denvatives (viu) (145.6) (2174)

7.5 (199 0)

The fair value (losses) on derivatives can be analysed as follows:

Gamn/(loss) on fair value movements 46.2 (203 6)
Loss on fuel denivauves settled during the year (reclassified - see above) (198.0) (19
Gains/(losses) on forex dertvatives settfed during the year (reclassified — see

above) 62 (119

(145.6) (217 4)

The Group separately presents certain items as exceptional These are items which in the judgment of
the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence 1n order for the reader
to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information In addition, 1n order to assist the reader
to understand the underlying business performance, the Group separately discloses withun the income
statement specific IAS 39 mark-to-market movements

30




Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors® report and consohdated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes (continued)

8 Exceptional items (continued)

(i) During the year the Group wncurred accelerated depreciation of £6 7m, on us A-330 fleet The
acceleration relates to cabin components which are scheduled to exit the fleet earlier than
anticrpated

(i) Fuel costs include £198m (2014 £1 9m) relating to losses recogmised on matunty of fuel
denvative contracts Other income/expenses include gains of £6 2m (2014 losses of £11 9m)
relating to movements on maturity of foreign currency denvatve contracts Fair value
movements 1n relaton to the Group's fuel and foreign currency derivatves are reclassified as
an exceptional stem to fair value (losses) on derivative contracts, 10 ensure that the operating
costs of the Group can be reflected at an unhedged rate as the Group does not apply hedge
accounting

(iii} In the prior year, included within other income was a £6 9m gain recognised 1n relauon to the
successful settlement of a legal claim that the Group had pursued in relation to a supplier

(iv)  Dunng the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group purchased and subsequently, entered into
sale and operating leasebacks of four Boeing 787 aircraft Profits sale and leaseback amounted
to £57 Tm The profits ansing from the sale and operating leaseback of the aircraft have been
rectassified and are shown net of any supplier compensation received See note 13 for further
details

{v) In 2014, the Group disposed the majonty of its shares within the Awline Group Limuited,
recognistng a profit on disposal of £30 9m As the investment was held at historic cost the
profit on disposal was considered exceptional See Note 15 for further detals.

{vi) Restructuning costs of £19 8m have been recogmised 1n year and relate to the Group's change
programime - fit mmble Costs incurred in the current year relate to employee restructuring
costs (£13 9m), and onerous lease obligations (£5 8m) that have been recognised following the
decision to co-locate more of the Group’s functions The programme involves fundamental
appraisal of how the business operates in both front and back office functions and will continve
to transform the business over a number of years, see the Strategic Report for further details

In the prior year £7 7Tm was recogmsed as exceptional relaung to the Group's strategy to
restructure the route network

(vii) Included within finance expense for 2014, an amount of £25 5m was incurred to settle histonc
interest rate swaps where the hedging relathonship was no longer effective in relation to the
underlying hedged stem

{viii) The Group discloses specific TAS 39 mark-to-market movements separately within the
statement of comprehensive 1ncome as an exceptional item
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9

Employee remuneration

(1} Headcount and total remuneration
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was

( Group
2015 2014
Number Number
Management and administrahion 1,045 1,033
Flight crew 777 777
Cabin crew 3,507 3,551
Reservations and sales 1,672 1,776
Cargo and handling 203 221
Engineering, cargo and production 729 714
7,933 8,072
The aggregate payroll costs (including directors) of these persons were as follows
| Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Wages and salarnes 271.0 2751
Social secunty costs 21.7 270
Other pension costs (note 25) 26.4 260
331.1 328 1

(ii) Aggregate directors’ remuneration

Dunng the year/penod of their service, the emoluments of the directors of the Group were

I Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Total emoluments
Aggregaie emoluments 1.2 13
Contnbutions to money purchase pension schemes 0.1 01
Aggregate amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes - 11
1.3 25
Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments and other benefits 0.7 06
Contributions to money purchase pension schemes 0.1 01
Aggregate amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes - 08
0.8 15

Returement benefits are accruing to 2 (20/4 2) directors under money purchase pension schemes
Duning the year an amount of £0 2m (2014 £0 5m} was paid to shareholders in respect of the services

of certain shareholder-appointed non-executive directors of the Group

Duning the year an amount of £ml (2074 £0 5m) was receivable by a former director of the Group in
relation to long term mncentive schemes, this scheme was terminated duning 2014 and a new scheme
has been created for 2015 (see w1 below) Duning the year, the directors received shares under the long
term 1ncentive plan scheme No options were exercised during the year The aggregate compensation
for loss of office paid in the year, not included in the above table, was £ml (2014 £03m) The

directors are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group
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10

Employee remuneration (continued)

(iii) Share based payments: Long-term incentive scheme

In May 2015, the Group granted 108,561 (38,420 A1 shares of £1 each and 70,141 A2 shares of
£0 01 each) Share Appreciation Rights ("SARs") within Virgin Atlantic Two Limuted, to
employees that entitle them to a cash payment after 4 years of service The SARs expire at the
end of the four-year period after grant date The amount of the cash payment 15 determined
based on the increase n the earmings valuation of the Group between the grant date and the ume
of exercise The valuation of the SARs 1s made on an anpual basis using external third parties
The fair value of the SARs are nil as at 31 December 2015

Net finance costs

I Group ]
2015 2014
£m £m
Finance income
Bank deposits 15 15
Unlisted investments (note 15) 0.3 02
1.8 17
Finance expense
Bank loans and overdrafis {note 20) {a.m Qa1
Other loans 5.0 (10}
Amounts due to the group 0.4) {0 6}
Exchange loss on foreign currency borrowings less deposits 0.7) 09
In respect of finance leases and hire purchase contracts (note 20) .5 (03)
Settlement of interest rate swap (note 8) (25 5)
Unwinding of discount on provisions {note 22} (0.5) (02)
(11.1) (29 6)
Interest capitahsed on arcraft progress payments (note 13) 4.4 1.0

6.7) (28 6)

Net finance costs (4.9) (269)
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Tax

Analysis of the tax expense duning the year

Group
2015 2014
£m £m

Current tax

UK corporation tax 1.6 (46)
UK group rehef receivable - 12
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 2.7 05)
Non - UK current tax {01
Total current tax (charge)/credut 4.3 40)
Deferred tax

Onginauon and reversal of turming differences (5.6) 439
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 4.9) 03
Effect of changes i tax rate 0.1 -
Total deferred tax (charge)/credu {10.4) 442
Tax (charge)/credit (6.1) 402

The standard rate of UK corporation lax for the year 1s 2025% (2014 21 5%) The total tax charge of
6 9% for the period 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax This 1s driven by UK government
rehiefs and other permanent differences The actual current 1ax charge for the penod differs from that
computed by applying the standard tax rate to the profit on ordinary activities before tax as reconciled

below
Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Profit/(loss) for the year before taxatton 89.5 (194 2)
Tax at the standard rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) (18.1) 418
Factors affecting the (charge)/credit for the year:
Income not subject to corporation tax - 91
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.3 “46)
Effects of changes in tax rates 0.1 -
Depreciation for the year in excess of capital allowances - {7 4)
Adjustments 1n respect of pnior periods 24) (0 5)
Utilisation of UK tax losses brought forward - 20
Other uming differences - 23
UK government reliefs 4.4 -
Foreign tax - 1
Permanent differences 10.2 -
Rollover relief - (2.4)
Total current tax {charge)/credit (6.1) 402

Reducuons wn the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% (effectve from I Apni 2014) and 20%
(effecive from 1 Apnl 2015) were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 Further reductions to 19%
(effecuve from 1 Apnl 2017) and to 18% (effective | Aprii 2020) were substanuvely enacted on 26
October 2015 This wall reduce the Group's future current tax charge accordingly The deferred tax asset at

31 December 2015 has been calculated at 20%
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12 Intangible assets

L Group and Company —I
Software Landing Carbon Total
slots allowances

£m £m £m £m
Cost
At | January 2014 879 911 09 1799
Additions - - - -
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 164 - - 164
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2014 104 3 911 09 1963
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014 621 106 - 727
Amortisation for the year 9¢ - - 90
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2014 711 106 - 817
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 332 805 09 1146
Cost
At 1 January 2015 104 3 911 09 1963
Addions 04 - 02 06
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 64 - - 64
Insposals (14 3) - (10) (153)
At 31 December 2015 96.8 91.1 01 188.0
Accumulated amortisation
At | January 2015 711 106 - 817
Amortisation for the year 162 - - 162
Dusposals (14 0) - - (14 0)
A1 31 December 2015 73.3 10.6 - 83.9
Carrying amount
A1 31 December 2015 2}.5 80.5 0.1 104.1

An annual impairment review 1s conducted on all intangible assets that have an indefimite econemic life
Landing nights based within the EX are considered to have an indefinite economic hife The impairment
review 1s carried out at the level of a ‘cash-generating umt’ {CGU), defined as the smallest identifiable
group of assets, liabilines and associated intangible assets that generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets On this basis, managemeni have
determined that the Group and Company has one CGU, namely 1ts route network An impairrment review
has been conducted on the operations of the route network as i contains landing nghts within the EU

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been measured on 1ts value 1n use, using a discounted cash flow
mode] Cash flow projections are based on the forecast approved by the Board covening a one-year penod,
and projections in line with the Group's and Company’s strategic plans

A sensiivity analysis has not been disclosed as management believe that any reasonable change in
assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount The
impairment review of the route network CGU resulted wm no mmparrment dunng the vear (2014 no
imparment)

35




Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited and subsidiary companies |
Directors’ report and consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes {continued)

13 Property plant and equipment

L Group |
Land Aircraft, Modifications Plant and Assets Total
and rotable to airerafton  machinery, under
buildings spares and operating fixtures construction
anaillary leases and
equipment fittings
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Fanuary 2014 300 41413 2509 1191 234 8377
Additions - 189 8 131 116 206 2441
Disposals - (1409) (193) (13) (15) (1630)
Reclasstfications - (14) 08 49 (205) (162)
At 31 December 2014 300 461 8 2455 134 3 310 9026
Accumulated
depreciation
At | January 2014 40 2680 1690 896 - 5306
Deprecration for the year 05 248 123 96 - 472
Disposals - (76 1) (80) (13) - (854)
At 31 December 2014 45 2167 1733 979 - 4924
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 255 2451 722 364 310 4102
Cost
At ] January 2015 300 4618 2455 1343 310 9026
Additions - 4787 72 10 626 5495
Disposals - (353 5) (60 3) (18 2) (65) (4385)
Reclassifications - 27 64 125 (28 1) (65)
At 31 December 2015 30.0 589.7 198.8 129.6 59.0 1,007.1
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2015 45 2167 1733 979 - 4924
Depreciation for the year 05 231 297 iz3 - 656
Disposals - (10 0) (59 4) (179 - (873
At 31 December 2015 5.0 229.8 143.6 92.3 - 470.7
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 25.0 3599 55.2 37.3 590 5364
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13 Property plant and equipment (conttnued)

| Company l
Land Aircraft, Modifications Plantand Assels Total
and rotable to aircrafton  machinery, under
buildings spares and operating fixtures construction
ancillary leases and
equipment fitungs
£m £m £m £m £m fm
Cost
At 1 January 2014 300 416 6 2546 1183 262 8457
Additions - 189 8 131 116 296 2441
Disposals - (151 6) (193) (13) (15) (1737)
Reclassifications - (14) 31 49 (22 8) (16 2)
At 31 December 2014 300 453 4 2515 1335 315 8999
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2014 40 260 2 1697 892 - 5231
Depreciation for the year 05 252 129 96 - 482
Disposals - (31 8) 80 (13) - (91D
At 31 December 2014 45 203 6 174 6 97 5 - 4802
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 255 249 8 769 360 315 4197
Cost
At | January 2015 300 4534 2515 1335 315 8999
Additions - 4787 72 10 560 5429
Disposals - (3535) (60 2) (182) - (4319)
Reclassifications - 27 66 125 (28 3) (65)
A1 31 December 2015 30.0 581.3 205.1 128.8 59.2 1,004.4
Accumulated
depreciation
At | January 2015 45 2036 174 6 975 - 4802
Depreciation for the year 05 267 305 121 - 698
Disposals - (100) (59 4) (17 9) - (873)
At 31 December 2315 5.0 220.3 145.7 91.7 - 462.7
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 25,0 361.0 594 37.1 59.2 541.7

Freehold land with a cost of £30 Ilm (2014 £30 Im) has not been depreciated Included i aircraft, rotable
spares and ancillary equipment are progress payments of £46 8m (2014 £648m), these amounts are not
depreciated
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13 Property plant and equipment (conrinued)

Duning the year, the Group and Company purchased, and subsequently, entered into sale and operating
leasebacks of four Boeing 787-9 awrcraft Duning the year the Group and Company returned two Airbus
A340-600 and two Boeing 747 aircraft held on operating leases back to lessors at the end of the lease
term Furthermore, the Group and Company returned two Airbus A340-300s and a Boeing 747 aircraft
held under operating leases to the lessor at the end of the lease term, but immediately purchased all
three aircraft from the same lessor The two A340-300s were subsequently sold

No impairments arose on the disposal of any awrcraft The wtal profit on the disposal of aircraft above
was £4 74m (excluding supplier settlements - see note 8 for further details)

The following property, plant and equipment categories include assets held under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts

] Group f Company I

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m
Carrying
amount
Aurcraft, rotable spares and ancillary equipment 1244 282 133.7 385
Depreciation charged for the year
Aarcraft, rotable spares and ancillary equipment 53 54 6.3 65

During the year the Group entered into two new finance leases for Boeing 787-9 arrcraft with a book
value of £129 2m (2074 £nil) The carrying amount of assets held under finance leases includes
maintenance events and modifications to the asset which have been incurred 1n periods following the
lease inceptrion Finance leases obligations are shown notes 20 and 28

Interest capitalised by the Group and Company on aircraft progress payments included 1n additions
during the year amounted to £4 4m (20/4 £/ Om) The cumulative amount of interest capitalised in the
total cost above for the Group and Company amounts to £1 3m (2014 £2 3m)

At 31 December 2015, fleet assets with a carrying amount of £30 3m (2014 £32 8m) have been
pledged as secunty for bank and other loans
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14 Deferred tax

The following are the matenal deferred tax asseis and liabilities recogmised by the Group and Company,
and movements thereon duning the cumrent and prior reporting period Deferred taxation 1s provided for

at 209 (2014 20%)
| Group I Company ]

2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

£m im £m £m £m £m
Accelerated capital
allowances (18 6) (349) 422) (38.5) (56 0) (63 5)
Other timing differences 36.7 617 228 34.8 599 i%6
UK tax losses 29.1 185 205 25.5 148 16 8
Holdover relief (12.3) - - {12.3) - -

34.9 453 11 9.5 18 7 (27 1)

There are ne significant losses in the Group and Company for which a deferred tax asset has not been
recognised

The net deferred tax movement 1n the statement of financial position 15 as follows

[ Group |Company

Movement in deferred tax asset/(hability) £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2014 [ @11
Charged to statement of comprehensive income 442 458
Balance as at 31 December 2014 / 1 January 2015 453 187
Charged to statement of comprehensive income (10 4) 92
Balance as at 31 December 2015 34.9 9.5
15 Investments
I Group I Company I
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Non-current
Unhisted invesiment - 04 - 04
Interest in substdianes - - 6.8 68
Equity loan stock - - 224 2 -
- 04 231.0 72

Current
Equity loan stock - - 0.6 -

The unhisted investment represents the Group's and Company’s nterest tn the Airhine Group Limited,
which consists of both equity and unsecured loan notes In 2014, the Group and Company disposed of the
majority shares within the Airline Group Limited, recognising a profit on sale of £30 9m (see note 8) The
Group continues to hold a minority position within the revised capital structure of the Airhine Group
Limited The investment 1s carried at cost

In December 2015, the Company purchased £224 8m of Equuty Loan Siock ("ELS") in Barbados
Enterpnses plc (a special purpose vehicle created for the purposes of capital raising) The ELS has a term
of 15 years, during this penod, the Company will continue to purchase further ranches of ELS 1n order to
fund the interest payments on the senior bond debt owed by the Group The principal will be paid back on
matunity of the ELS The ELS was recogrised mmually at fair value less transacuon costs and 1s
subsequent!ly measured using the amortised cost model

Investments 1n subsicharies are camed at cost For further information on the subsidanes of the Group
and Company, see note 24
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Derivative financial instruments
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The following table discloses the camrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and Company’s
derivauve financial instruments All denivatives are designated as held for trading and are not m a
designated hedge accounting relattonship.

Group and Company

2015 2014 2013
£m £m £m
Non-current assets
Fareign currency 21 35 44
Fuel 28 32 69
4.9 67 113
Current assets
Foreign currency 11.9 104 153
Fuel - 156 208
11.9 260 451
Current liabilities
Foreign currency (0.6) (48) 297
Fuel (183.0) (1690 22)
Interest rate swap - - (18 9)
(183.6) (173 8) (50 8)
Non-current liabilities
Foreign currency - o (163)
Fuel (9.9) (79 3) (25)
(9.9) (79 4) (18 8)
Group and Company
2015 2014 2013
Quantity Quantity Quantity
Nominal amounts {million) {million) {million)
Foreign currency (USD) 491.9 7558 1,558 0
Foreign currency (Other, represented in GBP) - 37 B85
Fuel (Barrels) 1.5 116 130
Interest rate swap (USD) - - 5000

The Group and Company enters into denvative transactions under master netting agreements Under
such agreements the amounts owed by each counterparty on a single day in respect of all transactions
outstanding are aggregated nto a single net amount that 1s payable by one party to the other In certain
circumslances, for example when a credit event such as a default occurs, all outstanding transactions
under the agreement are terrinated The termunation value 1s assessed and only a single amount 15
payable 1n settlement of all transactions

All derivatives are presented gross as the offsetting criteria have not been met This 1s due to the Group
and Company not having any legally enforceable nght te offset recognised amounts, as the night to
offset is contingent on future events For example default or other credit events

The following table discloses the carrying amounts of derivatives recogmsed in the Group and
Company statement of financial position that are subject to master aetting arrangements but are not set
off due to offsetting critenia not being met
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16 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
’ Group and Company —I [
Gross Amount Net
amount notsetoffl amount
As at 31 December 2015: £m £fm £m
Denvative financial wnstruments
Assets 16 8 (29 139
Liabilities (193 5) 29 (190 6)
(176.7) - (176.7)
f Group and Company I
Gross Amount Net
amount notsetoff amount
As at 31 December 2014: £m £m £m
Denvatuive financial instruments
Assels 327 (23 7) 90
Liabilities (253 2) 237 (229 5)
(220 5) - (220 5)
| Group and Company l
Gross Amount Net
amount notsetoff amount
As at 31 December 2013: £m £m £fm
Denvanve financial instruments
Assets 563 (41 4) 149
Liabilities (69 6) 414 (28 2)
(13 3) - (13 3)
17 Trade and other receivables
Group f Company ]
2015 2014 2015 2014
fm £m £m £m
Non-current :
Other receivables 28 325 319 310
Prepayments and accrued income 0.2 43 0.2 45
33.0 370 32.1 355

Current

Trade receivables

Provision for doubtful receivables
Net trade

receivables

Other recervables

Corporate tax recoverable

Group relief receivables
Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts owed by group companies

41

134.5 1525 134.5 1525
(4.8) 54 (4.8) (54)

129.7 147 1 129.7 1471
107.0 107 1 106.9 1070

5.7 - 58 -
4.0 - - -
41.7 44 4 404 425
234 378 45.3 383

311.5 336 5 328.1 3349
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17 Trade and other receivables (conttnued)

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are thercfore measured at
amortised cost Included within current other receivables 1s an amount of £69 Sm (2014 £67m) relating to
margin calls on fuel and foreign currency denvative positions

Duning the year the Group and Company wrote £0 4 wulhion (2074 £0 7 mullion) of receivables off
agamnst the provision

Group and
Company
2015 2014
Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables £m £m
1-30 days 43.9 227
31-60 days 1.0 158
61-90 days - 11
91-120 days - 02
120+ days 1.2 42
Total 46.1 440

In determmining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group and Company considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was imnally granted up to the reporting date
The concentration of credit risk 1s hmited due to the customer base being large and unrelated

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables 1s approximately equal to therr fair values

Group and
Company
2015 2014
Analysis of trade receivables by currency £m £m
Sterling 103.0 128 8
US doilars 21.0 100
Other 10.5 137
134 5 1525
18 Inventories
Group and
Company
2015 2014
£m £m
Aurcraft consumable spares 323 346
Finished goods and goods for resale 54 71
Fuel 01 01
Uniforms 1.1 13
38.9 43 |
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19

20

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Group Company l
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £fm £m £fm
Cash at bank and 1n hand 525.4 2761 512.6 2655
Bank overdrafts 3.7) (14) A.7) (14)
Cash and cash equivalents 521.7 2747 508.9 264 1
Restricted cash 62.7 90 56.6 191

Cash and cash equivalents compnse of cash and short-term bank deposits with maturity of three months or
less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts The carrying amount of these assets 13 equal to therr fair value
Restricted cash 1acludes hiquidity reserves relating to collateralised borrowings and cash collateral relating
to trade finance and merchant banking facilines

Borrowings
| Group [ Company |
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Non-current
Secured bank loans (1) (10.5) (10 6) (10.5} (106)
Obligations under finance leases (11) {143.0) (02) (143.0) 032)
Loan from VAIL (i) - - (423.4) -
Sentor bonds - Al (v} (182.1) . - -
Senior bonds - A2 (1v) (27.9) - - -
(363.5) (10 8) (576.9) (10 8)
Current
Secured bank loans (1) (26.2) (179) (26.2) (179
Obligations under finance leases (1) 5.7 “1 (5.7 41
Loan from VAIL (i) - - (1.8) -
Semor bonds - Al (1v) (1.4 - - -
Senior bonds - A2 (iv) (1.1) - - -
(34.4) (22 0) (33.8) 22 0)

The secured bank loans are secured by mortgages over certain fleet assets (see note 13} The interest rates
charged 1n the year in respect of these loans are 1n the range from 3 00% to 3 35% above US$ LIBOR

See note 28 for a full breakdown of all commitments under finance leasing and hire purchase agreements
Two additional aircraft were obtained under finance leases that were entered 1nto during the year

In December 2015, the Company received £425 2m from a subsidiary of the Group - Virgin Atlanuc
International Limuted ("VAIL") As part of these arrangements, VAIL obtained beneficial nghts over
certain of the Company's landing slots, the night to receive a serm-annual payment in relation o the
landing slots and the right to receive support payments from the Company 1n order to enable 1t to service
its borrowings from Barbados Enterprises Plc VAIL also entered into a joint business agreement with the
Company to operate some of its landing slot portfolio The substance of the £425 2m transfer to VAA 15 a
loan, with the “sale” and “repurchase” of the slots representing the 1ssuance and settlement of the loan
The loan has been treated as a financial hiabihty at amortised cost i1n the Company's accounting records
with the semt-annual payments representing the interest charge The loan will be repaid 1n 15 years’ ume

In December 2015, the Group 1ssued £220m of Semor Bonds to bond investors (£190m Class Al bonds
and £30m of Class A2 bonds) The terms are such that repayment of the principal wall occur 1n pan over
the {ife of the bonds such that £112m (£100m Class Al bonds and £12m of Class A2 bonds) 1s payable on
the maturity of the bonds after 15 years The value of the bonds 1s stated after transaction costs
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21

Borrowings (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

I Group ]
Sterling  US dollars Total
£m £m
Analysis of borrowings by currency as at 31 December 2015:
Secured bank loans (1) - 367 36.7)
Obhigauons under finance leases and hire purchase agreements (1) - (1487) | (1487)
Semor bonds - Al (1v) (183.5) -1 (181.5)
Senior bonds - A2 (1v) {29 0) - (29.0)
(212.5) (1854) (397.9)
Analysis of borrowings by currency as at 31 December 2014:
Secured bank loans (1) - (28 5) (28 5)
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase agreements (1) - “43) 43
Semor bonds - Al (1v) - - -
Semior bonds - A2 (1v} - - -
- (32 B) (32 8)
I Company l
Sterling USdollars  Total
£m £m
Analysis of borrowings by currency as at 31 December 2015:
Secured bank loans (1} - (367) (36.7)
Obhgations under finance leases and hire purchase agreements {11) - (1487)} (148.7)
Loan from VAIL (1) (425 3) -{ (425.3)
(425.3) (1854) (610.7)
Analysis of borrowings by currency as at 31 December 2014:
Secured bank loans (1) - (28 5) (28 5)
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase agreements (11) - {43) 43)
- (32 8) {32 8)
The maturity profile of borrowings 1s disclosed 1n note 30
Trade and other payables
I Group | Company |
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m fm
Non-current
Accruals (5.1) (25} {5.1) (25
(5.1) (25) (5.1) (25)
Current
Trade payables (4L.1) (813) (41.1) (81.3)
Amounts owed to other group companes (102.0) (101 9) (98.7) (80 5)
Corporate tax payable - (44) - 43
Group relief payable {8.8) ) (10.4) (137
Other taxes and social secunty (11.3) (11 3) (11.3) (113)
Other payables (1.4) (15) (1.4) (an
Accruals (255.2) (235 0) (253.6) (239 1)
(419.9) (447 3) (416.6) (4319

The carrying amounits of trade and other payables 1s approximately equal to their far values
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Provisions
[ Group and Company

2015 2014 2013

£m fm £m
Non-current
Maintenance (49 6) (100 4) (107 5)
Onerous leases (K Xt)] OS] (Y]
Leasehold dilapidation 61) (6 6) (19
Legal claims - - -

(587) (107 4) (109 8)
Current
Maintenance (42 6) (44 9) 4
Onerous leases 32 - 05)
Leasehold dilapidation an (13 04
Legal claims (8 6) (8 8) (10 6)

(55 5) {35 0) (53 6)

[ Group and Company ]
Maintenance Onerous Leasehold Legal  Total
leases dilapidations claims
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2014 (149 6) 09) (23) (l06) (163 4)
Amounts (provided)/released in the year (38 6) - (55) 67) (508)
Amounts utithised 1n the year 47 4 05 - 85§ 564
Other movements (45) - - - (4 5)
Unwinding of discount - - (02) - (0 2)
At 31 December 2014 (145 2) (04) (80) (88) (1624)
As at | January 2015 (145 2) 04) 80) (88) (1624)
Amounts (provided)/released in the year (26 9) (58) {05) (114) (446)
Amounts utihsed 1n the year 841 - 06 89 937
Qther movements 43 - 12 27 (04)
Unw:nding of discount - - (05) - (0 5)
Al 31 December 2015 (92.3) (6.2) (7.2) (8.6) (114.2)

Maintenance included 1 provisions, relates to the cosis to meet the coniractual return conditions on
awrcraft held under operating leases Cash outflows on aircraft and engine maintenance occur when the
matintenance events take place on future dates not exceeding October 2026

The Group and Company operate a number of properties where the costs involved with fulfilling the
terms and condittons of the lease are higher than the amount of economic benefit received Such
provisions represent the rent and occupancy related expenses which will be incurred after these
properties have been vacated unul the end of the lease term

Leasehold dilapidations represent provisions held relaing to leased land and buildings where
restoration costs are contractually required at the end of the lease Where such costs arise as a result of
captal expenditure on the leased asset, the restoration costs are also capitalised

Legal claims represent the estumated outstanding cost arising from the settlement of civil actions
Included within legal claims are compensation amounts due to customers whose flighis were
sigmificantly delayed, unless the airline can prove that the delay was caused by circumstances beyond
1ts control
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23 Deferred income
Group Company
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
fm £m fm £fm fm £m
Current

Forward sales of passenger camage

Unredeemed revenue Customer loyalty
programme (131.6) (1073) (986) (131.6) (1072) (986)
Other revenue received in advance 44.0) (753) {197y (4.0 (153 (98

(591.2) (5922) (5474) (5912) (5879) (543 1)

(415.6) (4096) (4291) (415.6) (4054) (4247)

Non-current
Other revenue received in advance (528) 1.1y (1400 (528) (111 (40

(528) (111) (140) (52.8) (111) (140)

The unredeemed revenue anses due to the Group's and Company’s oblhigations 1n respect of its customer
loyalty programme - Flying Club Revenue 1s recogmsed in accordance with IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes Flying club miles are stated at fair value, see accounting policies for further details

Interest in subsidiaries

The Group consists of a parent company, Virgin Atlanuc Airways, incorporated in the UK and a number
of subsidiaries The subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2015 are

Country of % Ordinary

incorporation issued Principal
Subsidiaries or registration shares activity
Virgair Limited England and Wales 100 Non-trading
VA Cargo Limited England and Wales 100 Cargo management
Viurgin Airways Limited England and Wales 100 Non-trading
Greenart Limited England and Wales 100 In hquidauon
Virgin Atlantic Engineentng Limted England and Wales 100 Dormant
Virgin Atlantic Consol Limited England and Wales 100 Dormant
Virglease Limited England and Wales 100 Asset leasing
Virglease {2) Linted England and Wales 100 Dormant
Virglease (3) Limited England and Wales 100 Asset leasing
Fordbar Services Limited England and Wales 100 In hqudation
Voyager Nominees Limited England and Wales 100 In hquidation
Public Eye Promotions Limted England and Wales 100 Dormant
Virgin Aviauon Services Limited England and Wales 100 Dormant
Virgin Freeway Limited England and Wales 100 Dormant
Speed 5024 Limuted England and Wales 100 Dormant
Campden Securities Limited England and Wales 100 Investment company
Fit Leasing Limited Jersey 100 Asset leasing
Bug Leasing Lrmited Jersey 100 Asset leasing
Threesixty Aerospace Limited England and Wales 100 Non-trading
Worldwide Travel of East Angha
Limited England and Wales 100 Travel agent
Junopart Limited England and Wales 100 Asset leasing
VAA Holdings UK Limited England and Wales 100 Holding company
VAA Holdings Jersey Limated Jersey 100 Holding company
Virgin Atlantie International Limited England and Wales 100 Airhine operations
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24 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Dunng the year ended December 2015, Virgin Atlantic International Limited became a newly
incorporated subsidiary of the Group Virgin Atlantic Internanonal Lirmted 15 a 100% owned
subsidiary

Barbados Enterprises plc, which 1s owned by trustees who are independent of the Group, 15 a special
purpose vehicle set up to facilitate the external capnal raising activiires of the Group In accordance
with IFRS 10, the Group 1s exposed, or has nghts, to variable returns from its involvement and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over Barbados Enterprises plc The results of Barbados
Enterprises Plc have been consolidated into the results of the Group

The proportion of voting nghts held by the Group in each of its subsidiartes 15 the same as the
proportion of ordinary shares held All subsidianies have been included 1n the consohidation All entities
in the consolidation have the same accounting reference date

Campden Securtttes Limited, Junopart Limited, Virgin Airways Limited, Speed 5024 Lumited and
Threesixty Aerospace Limited, whose results are included n these consolidated financial statements,
have taken advantage of the audit exemption under section 479A of the Compamies Act 2006 for their
financial statements

The directors of Fordbar Services Limited, Greenart Limited, Public Eye Promotions Limited, Virgin
Atlantic Consol Limited, Virgin Atlantic Engineering Lumted, Virgin Awiation Services Limited,
Virgin Freeway Limuted, Virglease (2) Limuted and Voyager Nominees Limited, whose resulls are
included 1n these consolidated financial statements, have taken advantage of the exemption to prepare
and file financial statements under sections 394A and 448A of the Compantes Act 2006

25 Pension scheme

The Group offers its employees a contract based defined contribution pension 1n the form of a Group
Personal Pension Plan The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at 31 December
2015 (2014 £mil)
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Related party transactions

The Group and Company had transactions in the ordinary course of business during the year ended
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 with related parties

i1

| Group I Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m
Parent
Sales to/purchases on behalf of parent . - - -
Purchases from parent 0.1) on 0.1) on
Amounts owed by parent - - - -
Amounts owed to parent - o1 - on
Subsidiary undertakings of the parent
Sales to subsidiary undenakings of the parent 6.5 15 6.5 i5
Purchases from subsidiary undestakings of the parent (19.9) (140 (19.9) (14 0)
Amounts owed by the subsidiary undertakings of the
parent 24.3 392 243 392
Amounts owed to the substdiary undertakings of the
parent (103.4) (103 5) (103.4) (103 5)
Subsidiaries
Sales to subsidiaries 0.1 -
Purchase from subsidiares (0.3) -
Amounts owed by subsidiaries - -
Amounts owed to subsidianes (1.8) 19

Revenue from related parties primarily relates to airline ticket sales and sales of frequent flyer miles
Purchases from related parties represent goods and services purchased for use within the business All
of the above transactions are on an arm’s length basis

In 2013, Delta Air Lines Inc acquired a 49% equity stake in Virgin Atlantic Limited from Singapore
Axrlines From | January 2014 the Group entered 1nto a joint arrangement with Delia Aurhines Inc

The joint arrangement, for which the Group and Company has received anti-trust immunity, provides
for the sharing of revenues and costs, as well as joint marketing and sales, coordinated pricing and
revenue management, network planning and scheduling and other coordinated activittes with respect to
the parties’ operations on joint arrangement routes

On 31 December 2015 the Group owed Delta Air Lines Inc £84 8m (2014 £55 7m) with respect to
the joint operation agreement Costs incurred in relation to the joint arrangement are presented within
airline traffic direct operating costs Total sales to Delta Air Lines Inc during the year amounted 10
£16 7Tm (2014 £10 2m), total purchases were £7 6m (20/4 £57.6m} Outstanding receavable balances
amounted to £3 2m (2014 £1 Im) and outstanding payables were £85 7m (2014 £55 7m)

As at 31 December 2015, the directors consider the ulumate holding company to be Virgin Group
Holdings Limuted, a company registered in the Bnush Virgin Islands The sele shareholder of Virgin
Group Holdings i1s Sir Richard Branson Sir Richard Branson has interests directly or indirectly 1n
certain other compames, which are considered (o give nise to related party disclosures under IAS 24
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27 Ultimate holding company

As at 31 December 2015, the directors consider the ultimate holding company to be Virgin Group
Holdings Limited, a company registered in the Briish Virgin Islands

As at 31 December 2015, the largest group 1n which the results of the Group are consolidated and are
publicly available 15 that headed by Virgin Atlantic Limited, a company registered in England and Wales,
and the smallest group in which the results of the Group are consoltdated 15 that headed by Virgin Atlanuc
Two Limited, a company registered in England and Wales

Copues of the financial statements for both Virgin Atlantic Limited and Virgin Atlanuic Two Limited may
be obtained from the Registrar of Companies, Compames House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ

28 Commitments

(i) Commitments under finance leases

The capital element of the future mimimum lease payments to which the Group and Company 1s
comeutted at 3[ December 2015 under finance lease and ture purchase coatract obligations
incurred in the acquisiion of arcraft, engines, spares and other equipment are as follows

Group and
Company
2015 2014
£m £m
Not later than one year 57 41
Later than one year and not later than five years 26.1 02
Later than 5 years 116.9 -
148.7 43

The present value of future mummum lease payments are included in note 20

(ii) Commitments under operating leases

As at 31 December 2015, the Group and Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as set out below

| Group and Company l
2015 2014
Aircraft Aircraft

Landand and Landand  and
buildings other buildings other

£fm £m £fm £m
Not later than one year 24.4 8.9 223 118
Later than one year and not later than five years 58.9 197.5 520 2972
Later than 5 years 82.3 996.5 529 703 6

165.6  1,202.9 1272 10126

(ini) Capital commitments

Group and
Company
2015 2014
£m £m
Capital commitments at the balance sheet date for which no
provision has been made 1,313.0 22464

Capital commuiments relaung to aircraft and engine purchases are stated at escalated list price less
progress payments made
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29 Financial instruments
(i) Financial instruments by category
l Group r Company I
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
£m £m fm £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 521.7 2747 2901 5089 2641 2916
Restricted cash 62.7 90 - 56.6 191 -
Fair value through profit and loss
Denvative financial instruments 16.8 327 563 16.8 327 563
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
Investments - 04 74 231.6 72 141
Trade and other receivables (excl
prepayments and accrued income) 2086 3246 3473 3197 3234 3451

39098 6414 7011 11,1336 6465 7071

Financial habilities
Fair value through profit and loss

Denvauve financial instruments (193.5) (2532) (696) (193.5) (2532) (696)
Financial habalities al amortised cost
Borrowings (3979 (327 (324) (6HW.7) (327 (324
Trade and other payables (excl
accruals) (164.7) (2085) (2759 (163.0) (1928) (2587

(756.1) (4944) (3779 (967.2) (4787) (3607

The carrying values of financial assets and habihities are deemed to approximate their fair values

(ii) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of the Group and Company financial instruments are disclosed n hierarchy levels
depending on the nature of the inputs used in determiming the fair values as follows

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities,

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, exther directly or indirectly, and

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data

The only instruments cammed at fair value by the Group and Company are the denvauve financial
wnstruments thal consist of fuel, foreign exchange and interest rate swap derivatives These are listed
at level 2 on the fair value hierarchy Discounted cash flow 1s the valuation techmque used to amve
at fair value Future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates and forward fuel
price rates (from observable rates at the end of the reporting period) and contract forward rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of various counterparties

For all other financial instruments that are not measured at fair valuee on a recurmring basis, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabiliies (as disclosed
in (1) above) approximate their fair values

There were no transfers between levels during the year
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30 Financial risk management

The Group and Company are exposed to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (including foreign
currency risk, 1nterest rate nisk and fuel price nsk), credut nisk, capital rnisk and Liquidsty risk The Group's
board of direciors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nisk
managemenl framework, which focuses on the unpredictabiiity of financial markets and seeks to
mimmise potential adverse effects on financial performance

The Greup and Company nsk management policies are established to idenufy and analyse the nisks
faced by the entities, and to set appropriate hmits and contrals and monitor risks and adherence to limits
The Treasury function implements the financial sk management policies under governance approved
by the Board and overseen by the Financial Risk Commuttee The Treasury funcuon identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial nsks The Board provides written principles for overall sk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange nsk, nterest rate risk, credut nsk, use
of derivative financial instruments and investment of excess hquidity

(i) Fuel price risk

The Group and Company are exposed lo fuel price nsk The fuel hedging policy aims to provide
protection against sudden and significant changes in the jet fuel price The policy allows the Group
and Company to hedge within bands up to 24 months out with declining percentages In
implementing the strategy, the fuel hedging policy allows for the use of a number of denvatives
available on the over-the-counter {(OTC) markets with approved counterparties and within
approved Limuts

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of financial instruments to a reasonably possible
change 1n fuel prices, with all other vanables held constant, on profit before tax and equity

Group and Company

2015 2014 2013

im £m £m
Increase tn fuel price by a fixed percentage 30% 30% 30%
Increase in profit before tax 50.4 148 4 1111
Decrease 1n fuel price by a fixed
percentage -3 % -30% -30%
Decrease 1n profit before tax (64.3) (139 5) (109 9)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

The Group and Company 1s pnimanly exposed 1o currency risk on fuel, finance and operating lease
costs which results 1n a shortfall of US dollars, this s partially offset by US dollar revenues The
Group and Company 15 also exposed to currency nsk on costs and revenues in other currencies
Currency risk s reduced through matching receipts and payments tn individual currencies and
holding foreign currency balances to meet future obligations Any exposure that cannot be naturally
hedged 15 managed through application of the foreign exchange hedging policy

The foreign exchange hedging policy aims to provide protection against sudden and sigmificant
movements 1 exchange rates The policy allows the Group and Company to hedge within bands up
to 24 months out with decliming percentages In implementing the strategy, the FX hedging policy
allows for the use of a number of derivatives available on the over-the-counter (OTC) markets with
approved counterparties and within approved hmaits
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30

Financial risk management (continued)

(i)

liv)

(v)

The Group and Company has substantial liabilities denorminated in US dollar The following table
demonstrates the sensiuvity of financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in the US
dollar exchange rates, with all other vanables held constant, on profit before tax and equity

Group and Company ]
2015 2014 2013

£m £m £m
Strengthening in US Dollar exchange rate by a fixed percentage 10% 10% 10%
Decrease n profit before tax (329 (462) (1109)
Weakening 1in US Dollar exchange rate by a fixed percentage (10%) (10%) (10%)
Increase 1n profit before tax 40.5 516 123 5

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk management programme 1s designed to protect the business from sigmficant
adverse movement tn interest rates in a manner which 1s broadly 1n line with major compettors The
objective is to tower the cost of capital by maintatning a targeted optimal range of net floating rate debt
instruments while at the same Ume, not over-exposing the company 10 interest rate fluctuations
Interest rate exposure 1s managed on net basis 1e after taking into consideration the natural hedge
available due to cash invested in the short term at floating 1nterest rates

Credit risk

The Group and Company s exposed to credit nsk to the extent of non- performance by us
counterparties (n respect of financial assets receivable and /or 1n the money positions for denvatives
transactions In respect of cash investmenis transactions, counterparty as well as instrument type limts
are 1n place based on credit rating critena Each issuer must be rated by one raung agency (Fitch,
Moody’s or S&P) Credit default swaps are also considered wherever relevant and available Simalarly
for foreign exchange, fuel and interest rate swap counterparties, adequale processes are n place
whereby credit ratings and credit default swaps are reviewed where available, ISDA (International
Swaps and Denvatives Association) master agreements are executed and Credit Support Annexures
(CSA) and Parent Guarantees arc put in place wherever necessary to mitigate and mimmize credit risk
The overall Group exposure n respect of ail the counterparties 1s reported to the Financial Risk
Commuttee (FRC) on monthly basis Due diligence 1s carned out for new foreign exchange, fuel and
interest rate swap counterparties which are then presented to the FRC for approval with the informauon
mentioned above as well as share prnice performance and financial statements technical analysis
wherever applicable

The maximum exposure to credit nisk 1s limited to the carrying value of each class of asset as
summarised in note 29. The Group and Company does not hold any collateral to mitigate this exposure

Liquidity risk

The Group and Company maintains a high proportion of cash in overmght money market deposits with
same day access, to mimmize the impact of margin calls relating to derivative activities, a combination
of CSA and non-CSA counterparties are used There are also margin call limuts within the foreign
exchange and fuel hedging policies 1n order to cap the margin call cash impact In December 2015, the
Group secured £220m of collateralised financing utibsing us slot portfolio to enhance the hquidity
position of the Group The Group and Company continues to maintain commuitted revolving credit
facihities of £25m

The matunity profile of financial habihties based on undiscounted gross cash flows and contractual
matunties is as follows.
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Notes (connnued)
30 Financial risk management (contunued)
( 2015 |
Within 1-2 2-5 Over 5
I year years years  years
Group £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables (exc] accruals) (164.7) - - -
Denvauve financial instruments (183 6) ©9 - -
Bomrowings
Secured bank loans (26 6) (L1 (00 -
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase
agreements (A51y (172) @477 (@162
Semor bonds - Al (66) (77 (233) (1555)
Senmior bonds - A2 (i.5) amn 51) (195)
(398.1) (37.6) (86.1) (337.1)
2014
Within 1-2 2-5 Over§
1 year years years  years
Group £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables (excl accruals) (208 5) - - -
Derivauve financial instruments (173 8) (79 4) - -
Borrowings
Secured bank loans (183) 21 25 -
Obhgations under finance leases and hire purchase
agreements 41 (02) - -
(4047 (817)y (125) -
2013
Within i-2 2-5 Over 5§
1 year years years  years
Group £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables (excl accruals) (275 9) - - -
Derivative financial instruments (508) (188) - -
Borrowings
Secured bank loans {(asn (10y (108) -
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase
agreements {10 0} (3.9 (02) -
(3518) @371 (11D -
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
2015 |
Within 1-2 2-5 Over 5
lyear years years  years
Company £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables (excl accruals) (163 0) - - -
Denvative financial instruments (183 6} 99) - -
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
Secured bank loans (266} (an (oo -
Obligations under finance leases and hire
purchase agreemenis (151} (172 (477 (1621)
Loan from VAIL (160) (125) (374) (4086)
(404.3) (40.7y (95.1) (570.7)
2014 |
Within 1-2 2-5 Over 5
1 year years  years years
Company £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables {(excl accruals) (192 8) - - -
Denvative financial insiruments (1738) (194 - -
Loans and receivables at amaortised cost
Secured bank loans (183) 21 (125 -
Obligations under finance leases and hire
purchase agreements 41 02) - -
(3890 (B17) (125) -
2013
Within 1.2 2-5 Over 5
lyear years years  years
Company £m £m fm £m
Trade and other payables (excl accruals) (2587) - - -
Denvauve financial instruments 508y (188) - -
Loans and recervables at amortised cost
Secured bank loans (15.1) (10 (108) -
Obligations under finance leases and hure
purchase agreements (100) 39 (02) -
(3346) (237 (110 -

{vi)

Capital risk

The Group and Company objective when managing capital 1s to safeguard the ability to continue as
a going concern 1n order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Group and Company monitors its leverage ratio 1 ¢ net debt to EBITDAR Net debt 1s defined
as the total loans and borrowings, finance leases, capitalized cperating leases (for calculation

purposes) net of cash and cash equivalents
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) | Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financial statements

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2015, are the first the Group has prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) For penods up to and
including the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group prepared 1its financial statements 1n accordance
with UK GAAP

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements which comply wath IFRS (as adopted by the
EU) applicable for periods ending on or after 31 December 2015, together with the comparatve penod
data as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, as described in the accounting polictes

In preparing these financial statements, the Group's opening statement of financial position was
prepared as at 1 January 2014, the Group's date of transition to IFRS

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group 1n restating 1ts UK GAAP statement
of financial posiion as at 31 December 2013 and its previously pubhshed UK GAAP financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2013

(A) UK GAAP (B)
As per Reclass- after Remeas- As per
UK GAAP ifications reclassification urements IFRS
£fm fm fm £fm £m
Non-current
assets 463 7 (127 4510 321 483 1
Current
assets 6865 (22) 684 3 410 7253
Current
habilities 916 0) (515) (967 5) (125 8) (1.093 3)
Non-current
liabilities {195 6) 66 4 (129 2) (29 9) (159.1)
Equity 386 - 386 (82 6) (44.0)
As at 31 December 2014
Non-current
assets 5509 99 5410 732 6142
Current
assets 668 1 (14) 666 7 226 6803
Current
habiities (985 7) (536) (1,039 3} (251 0) {1,290 3)
Non-current
habilities (184 1) 64 9 (119 2) (91 9) (211.2)
Equity 492 - 492 (247 1) (198.0)
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K] | Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financial statements {confinued)

Consohidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (after exceptional 1tems)

As per {B)
UK Remeas- As per
GAAP urements IFRS
£m £m £m
Total Revenue 2,546 8 (100 5) 2,4463
Fuel hedging 19
Aarhine traffic direct operating cost 975
Engineering and marntenance 06
Other operating costs and overheads 122
Operating profit 43 117 160
Fair value (losses) on derivalives (217 4)
Profi/{loss) before 1ax 115 2057 (194 2)
Tax (charge)/credit 09) 411 402
Profiv(loss) for the year 106 {164 6) (154 0)

In previous years, expenses were presented by funcuon Durning the current year the Group has elected to
disclose expenses by nature
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3 Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financia! statements (contnied)

(A) Reclassifications
A summary of all reclassifications made on adoption of IFRS is presented below

K} | 31
December December
2014 2013
Statement of financial position Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (i) (332) (258)
Intangible assets (i) 332 258
Deferred tax (iv) 97 (12 8)
@7 (12 8)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (ii) (90) -
Restricted cash (ii) 90 -
Cash and cash equivalents (vi} (1 4) (22)
(14) (22)
Current habthties
Trade and other payables (iii) 5366 4906
Deferred income (ni) (514 6) 4729
Borrowings (iii) (22 0) (17 8)
Trade and other payables (vi) 14 22
Provisions (v) (55 0) (53 6)
(53 6) (515)
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables (iii) 219 286
Deferred income (i} (11N (140
Borrowings (o} (10 8) (14 6)
Provisions (iv) 97 128
Provisions (v) 550 536
64 7 664

Notes

® Computer software previously included as part of property, plant and equipment under UK GAAP,
has been reclassified as an intangible asset in accordance with IFRS

{ii) Cash not freely available for use by the Group was previously included within cash and cash
equivalents under UK GAAP In accordance with IFRS such balances have been reclassified as
restricted cash

(i) ynder UK GAAP the Group disclosed its borrowings and deferred income withun trade and other
payables [n accordance with IFRS both 1tems are now separately presented on the face of the
statement of financal Position

(iv) Deferred tax habihues had previously been disclosed within provisions In accordance with IFRS
the Group now presents deferred tax as a separate item on the face of the statement of financial
position

(v} Presentational convenuons under UK GAAP did rot require provisions o be disaggregated
between current and non-current elements In accordance with [FRS provisions are classified
between current and non-current elements

(v1) Bank overdrafts were previously disclosed within trade and other payables, under [FRS, they are
now disclosed within cash and cash equivalents
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Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financial statements {(continued)

(B)

Remeasurements

A surnmary of all remeasurements on adoption of IFRS s presented below

k) | K}
December December
2014 2013 Total
Statement of financial position Note £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (iv) t5 110 125
Denvatve financial
instruments (i) 46) 113 67
Deferred tax (w1) 411 193 604
Deferred tax (vii) - (54) (54)
Trade and other receivables (i) 02 (10 (12)
Trade and other receivables (i) 32 32) -
410 320 730
Current assets
Trade and other receivables (i) 02) (33) (€))
Trade and other receivables (i) 08 08 -
Denvattve financial
instruments ] (19 n 451 260
(18 5) 410 225
Current habihties
Denvative financial
instruments (i) (1229) (508) (1731
Deferred income {in) (30) (74 5) (775)
Trade and other payables (v) 08 (05) 03
(125 1) (125 8) (250 9}
Non-current liabilities
Dernivative financial
instruments @) (60 6) (18 8) (9 4)
Provisions Giv) (14) (110) (12 4)
(62.0) (29 8) 918)
Equity
Profit/(loss) for the year (164 6) - (164 6)
IFRS transition reserve - (82 6) (82 6)
(164 6) (82 6) (247 2)
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k) | Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financial statements (continued)

Period ended
31 December
Statement of comprehensive income 2014
For the period ended 31 December 2014 Note Em
Revenue
Airline traffic and cargo operations revenue (rii) (30)
Aurline traffic and cargo operattons revenue (x) (97 5)
(100 5)
Operaung profit
Fuel hedging (v} 19
Arrhne traffic direct operating cost (ix) 975
Engineenng and maintenance (v) 06
Other operating costs and overheads ) 02
Other operating costs and overheads (vini) 119
121
Fair value {losses) on derivatives () (207 5)
Fair value {losses) on derivatives (vini) (13 8)
Fair value {losses) on denvatives (i) 40
(217 3)
Tax charge
(v1) and
Deferred tax (vii) 411
41 1
Movement 1n profit/{loss) for the year as a result of IFRS adjustments (164 6)
Notes

(i) Under UK GAAP the gain or loss on derivative financsal wstruments (fuel and foreign exchange)
would not be recogmised untl the maturation of the contract Under IFRS the movement in the fair
value of these derivative financial instruments at each reporting date 1s recogrused 1n the statement
of comprehensive income Any fair value movements afier the daie of conversion have therefore
been recognised

) Under UK GAAP, gains or losses on interest rate swaps that were seitled ahead of contractual
matunities were deferred on the statement of financial position and amorused over the life of the
existing hedge In accordance with IFRS such hedging relationships are deemed non-qualifying
requinng immedtate recogmtion of any gains or losses in the income statement

(i) Under UK GAAP, the Group recorded a provision for unredeemed frequent flyer miles based on
the estumated additional incremental cost to the Group of miles being redeemed by customers In
accordance with IFRIC 13 the consideration allocated to award credits 1s measured by reference to
therr fair value and deferred untl the service obligation has been provided

(iv) UK GAAP permutted the Group to provide for maintenance obhigations on operating leased aircraft
on an mcremental basis over the maintenance cycle [In accordance with [AS 37 the Group 1s
required to recogmise a full liabihity when the obligation anses under the relevant lease terms See
the note 4 accounting polictes for further details
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31 Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financial statements (continued)

Notes (continued)

(v)  Under UK GAAP, the Group recogmised lease incentives over the period to the next rent review
In accordance with IAS 17, lease incentives must be spread over the whole lease term rather than
to the next rent review

(viy Ths adjustment reflects the deferred tax effects of the profit and loss movements ansing from the
first ume adoption of IFRS

(vii) Under UK GAAP, deferred tax was provided on certain timing differences that had onginated
but not reversed at the balance sheet date Under IFRS, deferred tax 1s provided on temporary
differences based upon future recovery or settlement of assets and liabiliies recogmised in the
balance sheet

(viii) Under UK GAAP matured fuel and foreign exchange denvalives were previously recogmsed
within the fuel and other operating costs and overheads line 1tems respectively Both items have
been reclassified to fair value (losses) on dertvatives such that all derivative gains and losses are
recogmsed within a single line ttem on the face of the statement of comprehensive income The
Group does not apply hedge accounting

(%) Under UK GAAP, passenger service charges revenue was previously disclosed on a gross basis
Under IFRS, the Group should present any revenue earned net of costs when acting as an agent to
a transaction As a result, total costs incurred were wnitten back to the traffic direct operating cost
hne item and netted off against revenue

Company statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2013

{A) B)
As per Reclass- UK GAAP after Remeas- As per
UK GAAP ifications Reclassifications urements IFRS
£m £m fm £m £m
Non-current
assets 484 6 - 484 6 18 1 5027
Current asscts 6834 02 683 2 411 7243
Current
habilities (893 1) (53 4) (946 5) (1259 (1,0724)
Non-current
liabihties (223 B) 536 (170 2) (159 (186 1)
Equity 511 - 511 (82 6) (315
As at 31 December 2014
Non-current
assets 5656 (364) 5292 732 602 4
Current assets 665 8 (14) 664 4 226 6870
Current
liabiities (966 0) (536} (1,019 6) (2510} (1,270 6)
Non-current
liabihities (2107) 914 (119 3) 919N (2112)
Equity 547 - 547 247 1) (192 4)
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k) | Reconciliation of Group and Company IFRS comparatives from previously reported UK GAAP
financial statements (conttnued)

The reclassificattons and remeasurements as a result of the IFRS conversion are 1dentical 1o those at
Group level except for the following differences 1n 2013

= £02m in bank overdrafts were reclassified to cash and cash equivalents, £2 2m was reclasstfied at
Group level,

- £4] Om 1n deferred 1ax lhiabihiies were presented separately from provisions, £12 8m was presented
separately at Group level,

Deferred 1ax ended in a hability position at the end of 2013 (deferred tax was an asset position at the
Group level), as a result there was no reclassification of deferred tax from habihty to asset tn the
2013 Company conversion and the 2013 IFRS adjustments in respect of deferred taxes were applied
to the liability positton (IFRS adjustments were applied against the asset position at Group level),

= £468 5m was reclassifted from current trade and other payables to current deferred income, £472 9m
was reclasstfied at Group level

The reclassifications and remeasurements as a result of the IFRS conversion are identical to those at
Group level except for the following differences 1n 2014

- £19 Im was reclassified to restncted cash, £9 Om was reclassified at Group level,

- £364m n deferred tax liabilibes were presented separately from provisions, £9 7m was presented
separately at Group level,

Deferred tax ended 1n an asset position at the end of 2014, as a result the deferred tax hability of
£364m as at the end of 2013 was reclassified to an asset posiion, and IFRS adjustments were
applied to this asset position 1n armving to the closing [FRS figures

= £510 4m was reclassified from current trade and other payables to current deferred income, £514 6m
was reclassified at Group level
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Notes ¢ continued})
32 Reconciliation between profit for the year and cash generated from operations
l Group _]
2015 2014
£m £m
Profit/(loss) for the peniod 834 (154 0)
Adjustments for
Depreciation 65.6 472
Amortisation 16.2 90
Loss on unreahised forex 13.9 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment and 1ntangible assets (62.6) (10.9)
Profit on sale of unhsted investments - (309)
Taxation 6.1 (402)
Movement in provision for bad debts 0.6) (10)
Fair value movement in denvatives 145.6 2174
Net interest paid 49 269
Exceptional items 14.6 -
Working capital changes
Inventory 4.2 07
Trade and other receivables 35.2 230
Trade and other payables (20.6) 231
Deferred mcome 0.7 419
Provisions (75.5) an
Interest pad (5.5) (28 6)
Dividends pa:d - -
Income taxes pad (5 8) (24)
Net cash from operating activities 2598 120 1
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